
 

City of Alvin, Texas  
 

Paul Horn, Mayor 
 

Glenn Starkey, Mayor Pro-tem, District D Adam Arendell, District B 

Brad Richards, At Large Pos. 1 Keith Thompson, District C 

Joel Castro, At Large Pos. 2 Gabe Adame, District E 

Martin Vela, District A  
 
 

ALVIN CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2019 

 7:00 P.M.  
 (Council Chambers) 

 

Alvin City Hall, 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511 
Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting that will require special services please contact the City Secretary’s Office at 281-388-4255 
or droberts@cityofalvin.com 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  City Hall is wheel chair accessible and a sloped curb entry is available at the front 

east entrance to City Hall.  
 

NOTICE is hereby given of a Regular Meeting and Executive Session of the City Council of the City 

of Alvin, Texas, to be held on THURSDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers at: City Hall, 216 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas. 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Economic Development Departmental Update. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. Second of two required public hearings for the proposed voluntary annexation of a 3.97 acre 

tract of land situated in the Hennell Stevens Survey, Abstract No. 595, Brazoria County, Texas, 

being all that certain called 3.36 acre tract of land described in deed to DGOGAlvintx10252018, 

LLC, as recorded in Document No. 2019034970, Official Public Records of Brazoria County, 

Texas (O.P.R.B.C.T.), and that certain portion of Moore Road (a variable width right-of-way) 

adjoining said 3.36 acre tract. 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: An item(s) may be 

removed from the Consent Agenda for full discussion by the request of a member of Council.  Item(s) removed will automatically 

become the first item up for discussion under Other Business. 
 

A. Consider approval of the October 3, 2019 City Council Regular meeting minutes. 
 

B. Acknowledge receipt of the Fiscal Year 2019 Capital Improvement Projects Report and the 

Comprehensive Plan Implementation Report. 
 

C. Consider Interlocal Agreement IS19-001 with Brazoria County for an Asphalt Improvement 

Project; and authorize the Mayor to sign upon legal review. 

 

7. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

mailto:droberts@cityofalvin.com
mailto:droberts@cityofalvin.com


AGENDA - 2 -                                        October 17, 2019 

 
A. Consider two (2) Amendments to the Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center Lease 

which will allow for renovations to be made to Suites 100 and 200 for the Class A & Class 

D Pharmacy Services at the 1111 West Adoue Street facility; and authorize the Mayor to 

sign, subject to legal review. 
 

B. Consider an agreement for RFP-19-01 with Dreyfus Printing for various City of Alvin 

publications to include design, printing and distribution services for FY 2019-2020, with an 

option to renew the agreement for two (2) additional two (2) year periods; and authorize the 

City Manager to sign upon legal review.   
 

C. Discuss Chapter 31, Apartment Developments, of the Alvin Code of Ordinances. 
 

8. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  

A. Items of Community Interest and review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
 

9. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Pursuant to 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code reports or an announcement about items of community interest during a 

meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 

 

A. Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council 

members, and City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken. 
   

10. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

City Council will meet in Executive Session pursuant to:  
 

A. Section 551.074 of the Local Government Code: Deliberation on the appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or 

employee. 
 

1. City Attorney Evaluation. 
 

11. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 

A. Take action on Executive Session item(s) if necessary.   
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

I hereby certify that a copy of this notice was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 

accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website: www.alvin-tx.gov, in compliance with Chapter 

551, Texas Government Code, on MONDAY October 14, 2019 at 4:45 P.M.  
         

 (SEAL)       ___________________________________ 

       Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 

Removal Date: ______________________ 

** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session (closed to the public) under 
the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to convene into executive session on any of the above posted 
agenda items that qualify for an executive session by publicly announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited 
to sections 551.071 (litigation and certain consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to 
city), 551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 (qualifying economic development negotiations). 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/
http://www.alvin-tx.gov/


Economic 

Development Update

October 17, 2019

Alvin City Council



Economic Development

Described as the 

creation of jobs and 

wealth, and the 

improvement of quality 

of life and place. This 

includes capital 

investment and 

workforce 

development.



Economic Development

Sample Photo



Capital Investment & Employment

94 New Employees
LAO used for blending synthetic motor oils, transmission 

fluids, compressor and gear oils. Also military applications.

$550 Million

INEOS Oligomers LAO Plant



Industry Growth

INEOS Olefins and Polymers

• 16 New Hires

• Community Outreach Committee - Tennis Shoe Drive, site employees donated 254 

pairs of Tennis Shoes to support the Brazoria County Dream Center’s Back 2 School 

Bash!

Ascend Performance Materials

• 14 New Hires

• Chocolate Bayou held a silent auction at the 3rd Quarter family bingo night and raised 

$1,265 for Paws for Heroes, an organization that rescues shelter dogs and 

professionally trains them to provide emotional support to military members.

LyondellBasell

• 7 Upcoming New Hires

• Global Care Day - Volunteers in partnership with Keep Alvin Beautiful added two 

aeration fountains to the pond at Hood-Case Elementary School, repaired solar water 

pump, and built a handicapped accessible pier for children to collect water samples.

Jobs and Community Involvement



Capital Investment

• Victory Lane - Office Warehouse Additions

Inside Alvin



Capital Investment
Inside Alvin

Newly completed corporate 

headquarters



Labor Force

Sample Photo

2019



Education – Alvin Community College

• Fall Record Enrollment Near 6000 Students

• $25 Million Bond Campus Improvements

– Nolan Ryan Center to add new Culinary Education Facility

Western Governors University Texas and Alvin 

Community College partnered with an articulation 

agreement that will create a transfer protocol to 

assist students in transferring from ACC to WGU.

Texas Work Force Commissioner Robert Thomas 

presented a $243,556 Texas Workforce Commission 

grant.



Upcoming Development



NOTE:      2018 Hurricane Harvey

2019 is 11% over 2017

Reflections on a Community 

By The Numbers



Economic Development

City of Alvin Development Facts
Fiscal Year 2019 (October 1, 2018 – September 30, 2019)

New Commercial & 

Commercial 

Remodels/Additions

$13.0 Million

New Residential Permits

$38.8 Million

Current Home Builders in Alvin

Brighton Homes

D.R. Horton

Saratoga Homes

K. Hovnanian Homes

MI Homes

CastleRock

Centex

Alvin’s Largest Employers

Alvin I.S.D.

Empereon-Constar

Alvin Community College

Wal-Mart

Ascend Performance Materials

INEOS Olefins & Polymers

RiceTec

Ron Carter Automotive

TEAM, Inc.

Development Highlights

63 Planning Development Meetings

212 New Housing Permits Issued

Residential 

Remodels/Additions

$1.4 Million



Retail Trade Area



Demographics: 5-Mile Radius

Total Population 

is 49,951 with 

2023 projection 

of 51,565

2000 Avg Hhld 

Income $55,587

2018 Avg Hhld 

Income $86,070

2023 Avg Hhld 

Income $98,166



Residential Development

• Sunset Ranch – 81 Lots

• Kendall Lakes – 209 Lots

• Midtown Park – 169 Lots

• Forest Heights – 60 Lots

• Mustang Crossing – 246 

Lots

• Martha’s Vineyard – 300 

Lots

Under Construction, 

Platted, or Planned



Residential - Mustang Crossing

Sample Photo

72 Acres  246 Homes



Upcoming Development

Mustang 

Ridge 

164 Lots

Fairway 

Lakes

50 Lots

Parkside 

Trails

83 Lots

Fairway Lake

Recreational 

Vehicle 

Resort

Regional 

Detention



Transportation

• State Hwy 99

• Segment B

• Six Grade 

Separations 

(Overpasses)

• Major Railroad 

Overpass



Grand Parkway Segment B

• August 29th Tx Transportation 

Commission Mtg

State Representative Ed Thompson, Brazoria County Commissioner Stacy Adams and many 

other state and regional elected officials to include Galveston and Fort Bend counties help 

retain this in the State’s Transportation Implementation Plan.

• August 6th Public Hearing



Sienna Plantation FAM Tour



Development for Tomorrow

City of Alvin Revised 

Development Proposal 

Guidelines

Adopted:  9/5/19

Purpose

Intended as a communication tool 

for landowners and developers

Guiding Principles

Development of property within the 

City and ETJ should assist the City 

in implementing the goals of the 

comprehensive plan and add value 

to the community



Development for Tomorrow



Downtown Redevelopment

Storefront WindowSignage and Lighting



Investing in Quality of Place

Lighted Disc Golf Course - November Opening



Investing in Quality of Place

Alvin Wayfinding Signage



Welcome to Alvin
Short videos that showcase our community 

with links to Local Businesses



Thank You





 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/17/2019 

Department: City Attorney Contact: Suzanne L. Hanneman, City Attorney 

 
Agenda Item:   Second of two required public hearings for the proposed voluntary annexation of a 3.97 

acre tract of land situated in the Hennell Stevens Survey, Abstract No. 595, Brazoria County, 

Texas, being all that certain called 3.36 acre tract of land described in deed to 

DGOGAlvintx10252018, LLC, as recorded in Document No. 2019034970, Official Public 

Records of Brazoria County, Texas (O.P.R.B.C.T.), and that certain portion of Moore Road 

(a variable width right-of-way) adjoining said 3.36 acre tract. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☒Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:  Jacob Stauffer, the Manager of DGOGAlvintx10252018, LLC., is petitioning the City to annex 

approximately 3.97 acres of land, for the purpose of developing the tract by constructing a Dollar General Store. 

A final plat of the property, entitled Lenamon Grove Addition, was approved by City Council on March 7, 2019. 

 

Resolution 19-R-35 adopted by City Council on September 5th set two public hearings for October 3, 2019, and 

October 17, 2019.  This is the second of the two required public hearings.  No comments were made at the 

October 3, 2019 meeting. 

 

A Notice of Public Hearing advertisement ran in the Alvin Sun on September 15th and September 22nd, and 

also placed on the City’s website. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 9/26/2019 SLH 

 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

 
 
Recommendation:   N/A 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0047/docs/PH%20Notice%20SH35%20Moore%20Road%202019.pdf
http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0047/docs/PH%20Notice%20SH35%20Moore%20Road%202019.pdf


 

MINUTES 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

216 W. SEALY STREET 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

AND EXECUTIVE SESSION 

THURSDAY OCTOBER 3, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 

Regular Session at 7:02 P.M. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following members 

present: Mayor Paul A. Horn; Mayor Pro-Tem Glenn Starkey; Councilmembers: Gabe Adame, Adam 

Arendell, Joel Castro, Brad Richards, Keith Thompson and Martin Vela.   

 

Staff members present:  Junru Roland, City Manager; Dixie Roberts, City Secretary; Michael 

Higgins, Chief Financial Officer; Dan Kelinske, Parks and Recreation Director; Rex Klesel, Fire 

Chief; and Robert E. Lee, Police Chief.  

 

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

John Taosan with St. John the Baptist Catholic Church gave the invocation.   
 

The Alvin High School Marine Corps Junior ROTC led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American 

Flag and Mayor Horn led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag.  
 

PRESENTATIONS 

Alvin High School Marine Corps Junior ROTC Proclamation. 

Mayor Horn presented the Alvin High School Marine Corps Junior ROTC a proclamation for 

receiving the Naval Honor School status.  
 

Recognition of Fire Chief, Rex Klesel for receiving the 2019 Gulf Coast Tri-Rivers District 

Firefighter of the Year Award. 

Mayor Horn recognized Rex Klesel, Fire Chief, for receiving the 2019 Gulf Coast Tri-Rivers District 

Firefighter of the Year Award. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no comments from the public.  
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

First of two required public hearings for the proposed voluntary annexation of a 3.97 acre tract of land 

situated in the Hennell Stevens Survey, Abstract No. 595, Brazoria County, Texas, being all that certain 

called 3.36 acre tract of land described in deed to DGOGAlvintx10252018, LLC, as recorded in 

Document No. 2019034970, Official Public Records of Brazoria County, Texas (O.P.R.B.C.T.), and that 

certain portion of Moore Road (a variable width right-of-way) adjoining said 3.36 acre tract. 
Jacob Stauffer, the Manager of DGOGAlvintx10252018, LLC., is petitioning the City to annex approximately 3.97 acres of 

land, for the purpose of developing the tract by constructing a Dollar General Store. A final plat of the property, entitled 

Lenamon Grove Addition, was approved by City Council on March 7, 2019. 

 

Resolution 19-R-35 adopted by City Council on September 5th set two public hearings for October 3, 2019, and October 17, 

2019.  This is the first of the two required public hearings. 

 

A Notice of Public Hearing advertisement ran in the Alvin Sun on September 15th and September 22nd, and also placed 

on the City’s website. 
 

Mayor Horn opened the public hearing at 7:13 p.m. There were no comments made. Mayor Horn 

closed the public hearing at 7:13 p.m. 



MINUTES - 2 -                                          October 3, 2019 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Consider approval of the September 19, 2019 City Council Regular meeting minutes. 

 

Council member Arendell moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Seconded by Council 

member Thompson; motion to approve carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 

Consider the purchase of approximately 0.5 acre tract of real property (South St.-Bayou Bend (Alvin) 

Block 1, Lot 2, Brazoria County) adjacent to the property where the new Fire EMS Station to be built 

at the corner of E. South Street and Bellaire Blvd. in Alvin, Texas, in an amount not to exceed 

$65,000; and authorize the Mayor to sign all related documents. 
In November 2017, when the City purchased the property on the corner of Bellaire Boulevard and East South Street, 

where the new Fire/EMS station will be built, the seller retained approximately 0.5 acre.  As a result, the City executed 

an agreement with the seller and purchased 4.9 acres of the 5.48 acre tract for $325,000 (approximately $66,326/acre).  

The seller is now offering to sell the remaining 0.5 acre to the City.  Through preliminary negotiations with staff, the 

seller has agreed to sell the 0.5 acre to the City for $65,000 – which is significantly lower from the seller’s initial offer.  

Staff recommends the purchase of this 0.5 acres.   Funding will come from the General Fund via FY19 budget savings. 

 

Council member Arendell stated that he supports the approval of the purchase of the property to be 

used for drainage and the prevention of flooding in the area.  

 

Council member Starkey moved to approve the purchase of approximately 0.5 acre tract of real 

property (South St.-Bayou Bend (Alvin) Block 1, Lot 2, Brazoria County) adjacent to the property 

where the new Fire EMS Station to be built at the corner of E. South Street and Bellaire Blvd. in 

Alvin, Texas, in an amount not to exceed $65,000; and authorize the Mayor to sign all related 

documents.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 

Consider Resolution 19-R-37, adopting the revised Guidelines, Criteria, and Application for the City 

of Alvin Business Improvement Grant Program. 
Since its inception in 2017, the Business Improvement Grant Program has awarded 8 grants to projects that have equated 

to over $150,000 in private investment.  The grant program is currently available to businesses that are located in the 

downtown development area of Alvin.  Given the success of the grant program over the last 3 years, the guidelines were 

revised to increase funding and expand the coverage area.  For Fiscal Year 2019-20 the yearly budgeted allotment of 

$25,000 for the grant program has been doubled to $50,000, and the boundaries have expanded from the downtown 

development area to now include the Gordon Street corridor from State Highway 6 to FM 1462. The Guidelines were 

reviewed by the grant review team and revised to better reflect the goals of the program. Staff recommends approval of 

Resolution 19-R-37. 

 

Josh Dearing, Economic Development Coordinator presented this item before City Council. 

 

Council member Arendell moved to approve Resolution 19-R-37, adopting the revised Guidelines, 

Criteria, and Application for the City of Alvin Business Improvement Grant Program.  Seconded by 

Council member Castro; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 

Consider Resolution 19-R-38, designating one representative and one alternate representative to the 

Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) General Assembly for 2020. 
HGAC’s bylaws provide that each Home Rule City member with a population under 99,999 as of the latest (2010) Federal 

Census, is entitled to designate one representative and one alternate to serve on the H-GAC General Assembly.  The two 

designees must be elected officials of Alvin’s governing body.   

 

Each year City Council is asked to appoint elected officials to serve as members to this assembly.  Appointments must be 

made by October 25, 2019.   

 

Prior year appointments: 

2019:  Council member Arendell (representative); Council member Castro (alternate). 



MINUTES - 3 -                                          October 3, 2019 

 
2018:  Council member Arendell (representative); Council member Richards (alternate). 

2017:  Council member Arendell (representative); Council member Richards (alternate). 

 

Council member Thompson moved to approve Resolution 19-R-38, designating Council member 

Adam Arendell to serve as the representative and Council member Joel Castro to serve as the alternate 

representative on the H-GAC General Assembly for 2020.  Seconded by Council member Richards; 

motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 

Consider Resolution 19-R-39, nominating candidate(s) for a position on the Board of Directors of the 

Brazoria County Appraisal District. 
This Resolution is to nominate a candidate(s)to serve on the Brazoria County Appraisal District (BCAD) Board of 

Directors.  Cities, school districts, and counties may nominate one or more persons to serve on the Board.  The Board is 

composed of five members who serve two-year terms, all of which expire December 31, 2019.  In December, City Council 

will cast votes for various nominees by resolution.  The Chief Appraiser will then count the votes, declare the results, and 

notify the five candidates who received the largest vote totals, before December 21, 2019. 

 

In 2015 and 2017 the City of Alvin nominated and cast their votes for Tommy King.  Mr. King is a current member of the 

Board and would like to continue his service.  Alvin ISD will also be nominating Mr. King to serve on this Board. 
 

Council member Adame moved to approve Resolution 19-R-39, nominating Tommy King for a 

position on the Board of Directors of the Brazoria County Appraisal District.  Seconded by Council 

member Arendell; motion carried on the vote 7 Ayes. 
 

REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  

Items of Community Interest and review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 

Mr. Junru Roland announced items of community interest; and he reviewed the preliminary list of 

items to be considered at the October 17, 2019 City Council meeting. 

 

ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 

Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council members, and 

City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken. 

Mrs. Roberts reviewed items of community interest.   

 

Council member Adame apologized for what he said at the last Council meeting.  He felt that the 

Council has a harmonious and productive relationship and he does not want to see that jeopardized.  

 

Council member Thompson thanked Fire Chief Klesel for his work in the community. He also 

thanked the organizers of the National Night Out event.  

 

Council member Vela also thanked the Fire Chief and the National Night Out organizers.  He asked 

to keep the Stuska family in your prayers.   

 

Council member Arendell enjoyed the National Night Out and thanked those who hosted an event in 

their neighborhoods.  

 

Council member Richards expressed his appreciation.  

 

Council member Castro thanked Council member Adame.  He also thanked the first responders for 

attending the National Night Out event.  He also asked to keep the Stuska family in your thoughts 

and prayer due to the passing of Jeanette Stuksa.  

 

Council member Starkey expressed his appreciation to Council member Adame for his comments 

made this evening. 



MINUTES - 4 -                                          October 3, 2019 

 
Mayor Horn commended Fire Chief Rex Klesel for his involvement in the community.  Chief Klesel 

was instrumental in the creation of the Brazoria County Emergency District No. 3.  
   

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Section 551.074 of the Local Government Code: Deliberation on the appointment, employment, 

evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee. 

 

1. City Attorney Evaluation. 
 

No executive session was held. 

 

Take action on Executive Session item(s) if necessary.   

 No Executive Session held. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 7:33 p.m. 

 

 

 

PASSED and APPROVED the 17th day of October 2019.      

                 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Paul A. Horn, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: _______________________ 

                      Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
      



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/17/2019 

Department: Administration Contact: Junru Roland, City Manager 

 
Agenda Item:   Acknowledge receipt of the Fiscal Year 2019 Capital Improvement Projects Report and 

the Comprehensive Plan Implementation Report. 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   Staff continues to carry out actions on budgeted projects as defined in the 2019 Capital 

Improvements Plan (CIP).  This report is an update as to the progress of each project year to date. 

 

Staff also continues to deliver on implementation and completion of high priority projects defined in the 

Comprehensive Plan 2035.  This report is an update as to work completed year to date. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed:  

 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• 2019 CIP Report Update 

• 2019 Comprehensive Plan Implementation Report Update 

 
 

Recommendation:   Move to acknowledge receipt of the Fiscal Year 2019 Capital Improvement Projects 

Report and the Comprehensive Plan Implementation Report. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



 
Capital Improvement Program 

Quarterly Report 
October 2019 

 

 



10/15/18 10/31/18 11/15/18 11/30/18 12/15/18 12/31/18 1/15/19 1/31/19 2/15/19 2/28/19 3/15/19 3/31/19 4/15/19 4/30/19 5/15/19 5/31/19 6/15/19 6/30/19 7/15/19 7/31/19 8/15/19 8/31/19 9/15/19 9/30/19

Construction Project Complete

Design

Construction

Design Bid Construction 

Design

7. South Park Drive Pavement and Drainage Project Bid Construction Project Complete

8. FM 528 Extension (Design) Design

Construction Project Complete

Design Construction Project Complete

Construction

12. Fairway and South Water Line Improvements Design Bid Construction (270 Calendar Days)

13. Lift Stations 14 and 17 Rehabilitation Design Bid Construction (210 Calendar Days)

14. Lift Station 30 Expansion & Hwy. 35 Gravity Mains Design

15. 54" Eastside Interceptor Design

16. Water Line Improvements Phase I Design Bid Construction (210 Calendar Days)

17.  Northwest/Northeast Basin Sewer Survey Design

18. Water Plant #6 Tank Replacement Design Bid Construction (300 Calendar Days)

19. Wayfinding Signs Project Design

20. Fire/EMS Station Design Bid

21. Willis Street Downtown Parking Lot Design

22. Museum Expansion Construction Project Complete

23. Mustang Bayou Bank Repair Design

24. Pearson Park Sidewalk Design Construction Project Complete

25. Hike and Bike Trail Phase III (Design) Design

26. Disc Golf Course Design Bid Construction

27. City Hall Security Renovations Design Bid Construction Project Complete

11. Wastewater Treatment Plant Phase II

9. 2018 Concrete Pavement and Drainage Project

6. Moller Road Storm Sewer and Pavement Phase 2 

10. Briscoe Park Egress Road

FY 2019 Capital Improvement Program Project Schedule - October 2019

PROJECTS:

5. Moller Road Storm Sewer and Pavement Phase 1

3. Durant Detention Pond

4. Johnson Street Paving and Drainage Improvements

1. 2017 Sidewalk Project (includes Downtown Sidewalks)

2. 2019 Sidewalk Project



2

9

9

3

8

7
4

5
6

2

2
2

12

12

12

12

15

24

16

27

26

25
2322

20

18

14

13

13

11

10

25- Trail

FM 1462

0

FM
 52

8

W HIGHWAY 6

BYPASS 35 N

E HIGHWAY 6

BY
PA

SS
 35

 S

N GORDON ST
S GORDON ST

CLIFFORD ST

MUSTANG RD

KOST RD

W ADOUE ST

S JOHNSON ST

W SEALY ST
CR

 16
0

STEELE RD

W WILLIS ST

DAV
IS BEND RD

S HOOD ST

WICKWILLOW LN

S H
IG

HW
AY

 35

PA
RK

ER
 SC

HO
OL R

D

OWEN ST

DICKINSON RD

VICTORY LN

UNNAMED

RO
SH

AR
ON R

D

CR 14
9

CALLAW
AY DR

BARRAS ST

RYAN DR

SHANE ST

N HIGHWAY 35 BARRELL RD

W LANG ST

N SHIRLEY ST

BOOTH LN

TO
VR

EA
 R

D

E HOUSE ST

JEPHSON AVE

GATES RD

N SECOND ST

KO
ST

ER
 R

D

FM
 24

03

W DUMBLE ST

OLD GALVESTON RD

NELSON RD

HICKLIN ST

W PHILLIPS ST

PRIVATE

WESTFIELD ST

LAKE LINE DR

S HILL ST

CR 161

STADIUM DR

DILLING ST

MUNSON RD

WWTP RD

E FOLEY ST

FAIRWAY DR

PAUL ST

CR 142

SKYRANCH DR

MOLLER RD

RICE ST

MAMIE FORD RD

LULAC ST

E DUMBLE ST

CLEVELAND ST

AL
LIS

ON ST

E COOMBS ST

MESQUITE

BRISCOE DR

NEWMAN RD

WILDWINN DR

ALTA VISTA DR

S TAYLOR ST

W SOUTH ST

JENNIFER ST

TROON DR LASSO CT

KENDALL CREST DR

FITZ RD

BE
NNET

T R
D

QUAIL RUN DR

W SNYDER ST

VAN NESS DR

BAYOU DR

W BLUM ST

N LEE ST

PINE ST
DELTA DRS FIFTH ST

W HOUSE ST

MIDAS LN

DECOSTER BLVD

SMITH DR

S BEAUREGARD ST

CR 424

ADAMS ST
PERRY LN

TERRACE DR

PARKCREST ST

S HARDIE ST

PINTO PAS

WHEELER DR

WINDSOR SQ

S LEE ST

AVENUE E 1/2

OAK PARK DR

E SOUTH ST

WESTVIEW DR

COLLEGE DR

FOSHEE CT

KENTINGTON DR
FOX MEADOW DR

W COOMBS ST

FALLOW LN

DEER TRAIL DR CHILDRESS

HEATHROW LN

STEVENWOOD LN

STALLION RDG

SHAW
 ST

RIM WATER DR

ABINGDON RD

BATES ST

E PARK ST

WESTGLEN DR

ALLUVIAL CIR

CAMBRIDGE DR

N HILL ST

BR
AZ

OS ST

FOSTER ST

CYPRESS ST

N FIRST ST

LE
GI

ON
 S

T

FOX RUN DR

SLADE BEN LN
N 

NI
NT

H 
ST

N JOHNSON ST

HIGHLAND SQ

CROW
N DR

COVENTRY LN

QUARTERHORSE DR

STANSEL DR

BRENNEN LN

N DURANT ST

JEFFERSON ST

SHIRLEY AVE

SULLEY DR

W SIDNOR ST

PARKWAY DR

HOBBS RD

HURSTGREEN LN

MANDALE RD

LAYNE ST

JONES ST

AL
YS

SA
 PL

N JACKSON ST

0

0

E SOUTH ST

PR
IVA

TE

UNNAMED

PR
IVA

TE

PR
IVA

TE

0

UNNAMED

PRIVATE

E HOUSE ST

0

UNNAMED

UNNAMED

S HILL ST

STADIUM DR

0

0

MUSTANG RD

PRIVATE

0

UNNAMED
MUSTANG RD

PRIVATE

UNNAMED

0

W COOMBS ST

BYPASS 35 N

S HILL ST

UNNAMED

UNNAMED

0

UNNAMED

0PRIVATE

UNNAMED

0

0

0

S LEE ST

N GORDON ST

W DUMBLE ST

PR
IVA

TE

0

W BLUM ST

PR
IVA

TE

S J
OH

NS
ON

 S
T

0

0

0

UNNAMED

W LANG ST

BY
PA

SS 35
 S

35

190

17
2

144

6

155

180

163

24
03

181

168

166

145

146

284

179

159

1462

529

541

169

424

281

99

326

143

517

133

719

16
0

283

761

282

158

152

833

351

237

540

185

147

531

186

928

156

422

142

296

962

369

191C

266

949

149

367

812

737

MAIN

267

136

291

944

558

545

370

436

183

538

98

170

796

WICKWILLOW

191

296A

138

294

AMOCO

280

153

296D

695A

668

138E

870

947

536

150

PA
RK

ER
 SC

HO
OL

537

378

396

187

906

157

357

480

949
A

857

937

411

936

870A

368139

305B

378B

499
138A

378A

235

960

890

424B
424A

424D

949B

930

855

850

712

536A

634

962A

962
D

148

RIVERSIDE

431

949K

539

937A

962B

937B

965

138
B

962
C

191B

291A

928
B

576

138
C

392
864

550B

855B

WE
BB

855C

138D

755

855A 712B

949
J

712C

695B

143A

LOST RANCH

873

681

133A143B

FULTON

SMITH

424C

864G

953

357A

249

795

FAIRWAY

141

LARKSPUR

936A

BA
RRAS

BRITT OAKS

936C

378C

305

850A

159A

305A

TIMBERLANE

DORIS

WHITE

925A

HA
ST

ING
S

925B

813

191A

550C

864A
ESQUIVEL

156A

500

SERENITY

87
0B

ROBIN

291B

87
0H

966

HERRING

FC
R 23

5

378
D

87
3A

165

936B

949
C

296B

529
A

296C

HILLCREST

950

RIDGEMONT

136A

892

FLORA

577

MUSTANG

HOLLIER

WALING

OWENS S/D

CRESTMONT

73
7A

PARKER-STRINGTOWN

KE
TT

LE
R

73
7B

925

FOUNTAIN

KARLIS

930A

WICKLINE

SAND PIT

930B

6

284

145

160

FULTON

145

181

191

185

149

185

35

185

·

227
23

22
21

13

0

E SIDNOR ST
N GORDON ST

S HOOD ST E PARK ST

W BLUM ST

OLD GALVESTON RD

W SEALY ST

S GORDON ST

W WILLIS ST

W SIDNOR ST

SHAW ST

E BELL ST

S HARDIE ST

MAGNOLIA ST

N HARDIE ST

MCLEMORE DR

E SEALY ST

E BELL ST

E SEALY ST

See Inset

FY 2019 CIP Project Location Map
Rev. Date 1/10/2019
Engineering Dept.

Map Legend
CIP Project Locations
CIP Utilities
CIP Sidewalks
CIP Streets



Revised 4/1/2019

$325,000 $316,097 $325,000 2017

$325,000 $316,097 $325,000

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

2017 Sidewalk Project

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

1

This project is intended to provide adequate pedestrian access throughout downtown 
Alvin where pedestrians are frequently observed. Concrete and brick paver sidewalks 
will be installed in compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements.

To provide adequate pedestrian access, and add sidewalks to the downtown area as 
proposed in the Comprehensive Plan.

Project complete November 2018.

Sidewalks

Project locations include Willis St. (south side, between Second St. and Hood St.), Second St. (west 
side, between Sealy St. and the Mustang Bayou Bridge), E. House St. (north side, between Legion 
Road and Tovrea Road), Gordon St. (west side, in front of Kibbe Realty), Sealy St. (north and south 
sides, between Gordon and Hardie), and Hardie St. (east side, mid block to Sealy).

Project Location:



Revised 10/8/2019

$250,000 $250,000 2019

$250,000 $250,000

2019 Sidewalk Project

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund 

City Engineer

2

This project is intended to provide adequate pedestrian access throughout areas of 
Alvin where pedestrians are frequently observed. Concrete sidewalks will be installed in 
compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements.

To provide adequate pedestrian access, and add sidewalks as proposed in the 
Comprehensive Plan.

Project bid and construction moved to FY 2020.

Sidewalks

Project locations identified as number 2 on the CIP project location map. Pearson Rd. (east side 
between Johnson St. and FM 1462), Durant St. (west side between Adoue St. and Sealy St.), Willis 
St. (north side between Gordon St. and Hardie St.), Dumble Street (south side between College 
Street and Clark Street), and Clark Street (west side between Dumble St. and Fairview Dr.).

Project Location:

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN



Revised 10/8/2019

$107,000 $122,593 $122,593 2016
$677,000 $351,473 $315,000 2018

$784,000 $474,066 $437,593TOTAL:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Current Status:

DESIGN

OTHER

Project Location:

Project Type:

CONSTRUCTION

Drainage

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

FISCAL YEAR

Construction of this 60 day project has been severely delayed due to wet site conditions 
on multiple occasions, the Contractor remobilized to the site in May 2019 and is 
scheduled to have the project complete by the end of October 2019 weather 
permitting.

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

Durant Detention Pond

PROJECT COST

Yes

30+  years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

3

This project includes the design and construction of a storm water detention pond on 
City owned property along Durant Street (5 acres). This is the second of several drainage 
improvement projects that were recommended in the M-1 Ditch Watershed Study that 
was completed in January 2011 by Dannenbaum Engineering.

Five acre City owned property at the northwest corner of the W. South Street and 
Durant Street intersection. Project location identified as number 3 on the CIP project 
location map.

To improve drainage in the M-1 Ditch Watershed by providing detention storage for 
future storm sewer improvement projects along Durant Street, Moller Road, and 
Stadium Drive.

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:



Revised 10/8/2019

$200,000 $264,650 $200,000 2018
$1,718,754 $1,257,666 $2,039,650 2019

$30,000 $28,700 $30,000 2017
$1,948,754 $1,551,016 $2,269,650

This project involves the improvement of paving along Johnson Street from South Street 
to FM 1462. The project includes the construction of a concrete sidewalk from South 
Street to Pearson Road along the east side of Johnson Street.

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Type:

TOTAL:

DESIGN

The south end of the roadway was opened to traffic on October 4, 2019.  Current Status:

GEO. STUDY

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

CONSTRUCTION

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

FISCAL YEAR

Johnson Street Paving and Drainage Improvements Project

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

4

South Johnson Street from South Street to FM 1462. Project location identified as 
number 4 on the CIP project location map.

Project Description:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Justification: This project will make improvements and upgrades to Johnson Street.

Streets



Revised 10/8/2019

$250,000 $249,932 $250,000 2018
$1,803,659 $1,800,000 2019 Bond

$2,053,659 $249,932 $2,050,000

Moller Road Storm Sewer and Pavement Improvements Phase 1 

PROJECT COST

No

30+ years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund / Bond Funds

City Engineer

5

This project includes the design of the first of a three phase project to add a storm 
sewer system, concrete curb and gutter pavement, and sidewalk along Moller Road. 
This is the third of several drainage improvement projects that were recommended in 
the M-1 Ditch Watershed Study that was completed in January 2011 by Dannenbaum 
Engineering.

Moller Road near South Street. Project location identified as number 5 on the CIP 
project location map.

To improve drainage in the M-1 Ditch Watershed by adding a storm sewer system along 
Moller Road.

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Streets

Project Number:

FISCAL YEAR

Current Status:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

TOTAL:

DESIGN

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

GEO. STUDY

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

CONSTRUCTION

Design is complete. Project scheduled to bid in February 2020 for a Spring 2020 construction start.

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Type:



Revised 10/8/2019

$250,000 $250,000 FY19 Bond
$2,400,000

$2,650,000 $250,000

Moller Road Storm Sewer and Pavement Improvements Phase 2

PROJECT COST

No

30+ years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

6

This project includes the design of the second of a three phase project to add a storm 
sewer system, concrete curb and gutter pavement, and sidewalk along Moller Road. 
This is the fourth of several drainage improvement projects that were recommended in 
the M-1 Ditch Watershed Study that was completed in January 2011 by Dannenbaum 
Engineering.

Moller Road near South Street. Project location identified as number 6 on the CIP 
project location map.

To improve drainage in the M-1 Ditch Watershed by adding a storm sewer system along 
Moller Road.

Project Description:

Project Justification:

(Design)

Streets

Project Number:

FISCAL YEAR

Current Status:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

TOTAL:

DESIGN

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

GEO. STUDY

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

CONSTRUCTION

Project design expected to start in December 2019.

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Type:



Revised 10/8/2019

$800,000 $691,569 $800,000 2018
$24,923 Materials Testing

$800,000 $716,492 $800,000

South Park Drive Pavement and Drainage Project

PROJECT COST

No

25-30 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

7

This project includes the removal and replacement of concrete pavement / curbs and 
the installation of storm pipes, inlets, and manholes.

South Park Drive (off of South St. near Hood St.). Project location identified as number 7 
on the CIP project location map.

This project will replace the broken and uneven pavement and includes the installation 
of an underground storm sewer system to allow for proper drainage.

CONSTRUCTION

Streets

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

OTHER

Project complete.

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN



Revised 10/8/2019

$1,000,000 $1,186,353.11 $1,000,000 2018
$13,626,779

$14,626,779 $1,000,000TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

This project involves the construction of the extension of FM 528 from Gordon Street to 
Highway 6 along right-of-way that has been acquired in the last ten plus years.

OTHER

FISCAL YEAR

FM 528 Extension (Design)

PROJECT COST

No

30-35 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

8

Extension of FM 528 from Gordon Street to Highway 6. Project location identified as 
number 8 on the CIP project location map.

Completion of this project will help to relieve traffic congestion at the Gordon Street 
and Highway 6 intersection, as well as, provide a secondary evacuation route over the 
railroad tracks in the event that the railroad underpass along Highway 6 floods.

The Texas Department of Transportation submitted this project in HGAC's "Call for Projects" on 
October 31, 2018 in an attempt to obtain federal funding for construction through the TIP.  This 
project was not selected for federal funding through the TIP. HDR was notified by TXDOT in June 
2019 that they would not be able to advance funding for this project at this time. TXDOT has the 
project budgeted to start construction in 2024. Currently working with HDR to map the right-of-
way in order to convey it to TXDOT.

Current Status:

Streets



Revised 7/9/2019

$797,000 $696,357 $797,000 2018
$13,368 Materials Testing

$797,000 $709,725 $797,000

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

2018 Concrete Pavement and Drainage Project

PROJECT COST

No

30-35 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

9

This project includes the removal and replacement of concrete pavement /curbs and the 
installation of storm pipes, manholes, inlets, and sidewalks.

Heisse St. (S. Johnson St. to the east end), Richards St. (S. Johnson St. to the east end), 
and Kings Ln. (Westfield St. to W. South St.). Project locations identified as number 9 on 
the CIP project location map.

This project will replace the broken and uneven pavement and upgrade the storm 
system to allow for proper drainage.

Construction complete March 2019.

Streets



Revised 7/9/2019

$240,000 $48,364 $240,000 2018

$240,000 $48,364 $240,000
OTHER

Construction complete in April 2019.

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

Streets

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

Briscoe Park Egress Road

PROJECT COST

No

25-30 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer 

10

This project includes the installation of concrete pavement from Briscoe Drive to the 
ACC Facilities Building yard to provide emergency ingress and egress for Briscoe Park.

Briscoe Park Drive to ACC. Project location identified as number 10 on the CIP project 
location map.

To create an emergency access/egress road to serve Briscoe Park.



Revised 10/8/2019

$766,500 2016
$4,730,985

$7,540,000 $5,497,485 $7,540,000

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Wastewater Treatment Plant Optimization Improvements Phase II

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

Maintain Infrastructure

2015 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer/Public Services Director

11

Phase II of this project includes installation of a non-potable water system, belt press, 
rehabilitation of the aeration system, and rehabilitation of the digester tank as well as 
upgrades to the laboratory.

Wastewater Treatment Plant. Project location identified as number 11 on the CIP 
project location map.

Upgrade the WWTP to meet state and federal regulations.

The Contractor,  JTR Constructors, Inc, is currently completing work in sludge holding tank #5, 
project nearing completion.

Sewer



Revised 10/8/2019

$670,400 $528,111
$3,352,000 $1,228,796 $1,756,907 2019

$4,022,400 $1,756,907 $1,756,907

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

Current Status:

Project Justification:

McKinney Construction, Inc. is waiting on the City to obtain an easement from the 
Catholic Church so that the final 55' of water line and the tie in at Gordon Street can be 
installed.

Fairway and South Street Water Line Improvements 

12

Water

2015 Utility Master Plan - Water CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

Project location identified as number 12 on the CIP project location map.

New 12-inch water transmission line along South Street, Bowman Drive, Jephson Lane, 
Nelson Road, Mustang Road, and Verhalen Road to connect the Dyche Water Tower and 
the Verhalen Water Tower.  New 10-inch water line along Fm 1462 and new 6-inch 
water line along Koster Road to replace existing 2.25-inch water lines.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved 
by the City Council on March 3, 2016. 



Revised 10/8/2019

$260,000 $225,645 $225,645 2018 Bond
$1,300,000 $867,673 $867,673 2018 Bond

$1,560,000 $1,093,318 $1,093,318

ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

ESTIMATED

T & C Construction, Ltd. is currently renovating the lift stations in preparation for the installation 
of the new pumps.Current Status:

Lift Stations 14 and 17 Rehabilitation

13

Sewer

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved by the City 
Council on March 3, 2016.Project Justification:

2015 Utility Master Plan - Wastewater CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

Identified as project number 13 on the CIP project location map.

This project includes the rehabilitation of lift stations 14 and 17. The condition 
assessment results showed these lift stations to be in very poor condition.



Revised 10/8/2019

$1,495,900 $760,515 $679,865 2018 Bonds
$10,064,900 $5,777,300 2019 Bonds

$11,560,800 $760,515 $6,457,165

This project includes the expansion of lift station 30 from a firm capacity of 4.61 MGD to a firm 
pumping capacity of 9.0 MGD. This project includes a new 24 inch force main, and the upsizing of 
the gravity lines to 36 inches immediately upstream and downstream of lift station 30.

Lift Station 30 Expansion & HWY 35 Bypass Gravity Mains 

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

2015 Utility Master Plan - Wastewater CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

14

Lift Station 30 Expansion and HWY 35 Bypass gravity mains. Project location identified as 
number 14 on the CIP project location map.

Sewer

LJA Engineering completed the 90% design in February 2019. City Council approved Staff's request 
for additional design services to increase the capacity of the proposed lift station to 11.5 MGD to 
accommodate additional development on 5/2/2019. LJA is currently revising the design to 
accomodate the increased capacity. KDM Aquisition Services, Inc. is currently working on 
acquiring the additional property that is required for the expansion.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved by the City 
Council on March 3, 2016.

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Current Status:

Project Justification:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN



Revised 10/8/2019

$2,165,300 $2,076,000 $2,076,000 2018 Bond
$13,251,153 $5,898,880 2019 Bond

$15,416,453 $2,076,000 $7,974,880

54" Eastside Interceptor

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

2015 Utility Master Plan - Wastewater CIP Projects - 2020

2018/2019/2020 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

15

Replacement 54" Eastside Interceptor. Project location identified as number 15 on the 
CIP project location map.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved 
by the City Council on March 3, 2016.

Sewer

This project includes the construction of a 54 inch wastewater line from the 35 Bypass to the 
WWTP. The model showed the existing 27 inch and 33 inch wastewater lines do not have enough 
capacity to convey existing peak flows to the plant.

Freese and Nichols submitted the 100% plans, specs, and revised cost estimate on 7/18/2019.  
KDM Acquisition Services, Inc. is currently working on acquiring the six utility easements that are 
required for the project. 

Current Status:

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN



Revised 10/8/2019

$510,800 $433,300 $922,985 2018 Bond
$2,553,800 $1,590,645 $2,005,595 2018-2019 Bonds

$3,064,600 $2,023,945 $2,928,580

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Current Status:

Water Line Improvements Phase I 

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

2015 Utility Master Plan - Water CIP Projects - 2020

2018 and 2019 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

16

General project location identified as project 16 on the CIP project location map.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved 
by the City Council on March 3, 2016.

Water

New 10-inch, 8-inch, and 6-inch water lines to connect and replace existing small water 
lines in the area bounded by Adoue Street, Gordon Street, South Park Drive, and 
Johnson Street.

Council awarded the bid on 6/20/2019 to Scohil Construction Services, LLC. The Preconstruction 
Meeting was held on 8/6/2019 and a Notice to Proceed was issued for 8/21/2019 for this 210 
calendar day project. The contractor is currently installing water line along Cleveland Street.



Revised 10/8/2019

$95,300 $95,200 $95,300 2018

$95,300 $95,200 $95,300

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Current Status:

Northwest and Northeast Sanitary Sewer Basin Evaluation Survey

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

2015 Utility Master Plan - Wastewater CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

17

Northwest and Northeast Sanitary Sewer Basins in the northern portion of the City.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved 
by the City Council on March 3, 2016.

Sewer

Freese and Nichols submitted the final draft of Technical Memo #2 that details the results and 
rehabilitation recommendations identified in the study on July 22, 2019. The report recommends 
$855,700 in I and I rehabilitation work.

Utilities Master Plan recommended that a Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey be conducted 
throughout the Northeast and Northwest Basins to identify sources of Inflow and Infiltration. 
Once sources of I/I are found, the City should address them as required to reduce excess water 
from entering the wastewater system.



Revised 10/8/2019

$526,500 $319,400 $319,400 2018 Bond
$2,632,500 $2,446,526 $2,446,526 2018 Bond

$3,159,000 $2,765,926 $2,765,926

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Current Status:

Project Justification:

 Water Plant #6 Tank Replacement

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

2015 Utility Master Plan - Water CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

18

Water Plant No. 6 Ground Storage Tank Replacement identified as project number 18 on 
the CIP project location map.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved 
by the City Council on March 3, 2016.

Water

Bids were opened on 12/4/2018 and T & C Construction, Ltd. was the qualified low bidder. City 
Council awarded a contract to T & C Construction, Ltd. in the amount of $2,446,526.20 on 
1/3/2019 for this 300 calendar day project. Notice to Proceed issued May 1, 2019. Two of the 
three steel tanks have been demolished in preparation for the construction of the new concrete 
tank. The Contractor is currently working on the foundation of the tank and associated piping.

Decommission three existing 0.43 MG ground storage tanks and add new 1.5 MG 
ground storage tank at Water Plant No. 6



Revised 10/8/2019

$20,500 $20,500 $30,000 2018
$50,000 $50,000 2019

$70,500 $20,500 $80,000

Ongoing (10/08/19):  A stakeholders meeting was held on Wednesday July 10 for review of the 
wayfinding master plan and many revisions were requested. The document has been revised and 
returned to Staff. It is currently under review by Staff and the next stakeholders meeting will be 
scheduled in the near future to review the requested revisions.

Current Status:

Wayfinding Signs Project

19

Wayfinding

Planning for directional movement in the City to key locations.

General Fund

Economic Development Director

By implementing wayfinding signage, visitors will be easily directed to key locations creating a 
more positive experience and it will encourage others to see what the City of Alvin has to offer 
beyond the visible elements on the main roadways.

To develop a wayfinding signage system that will create a uniquesness about Alvin while also 
improving the economic vitality of lesser known parts of the City that tourists and visitors may not 
be aware of.

Corporate City Limits

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:
Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

PROJECT COST

No

N/A

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN 



Revised 10/8/2019

$986,540 $900,743 2018
$14,300,000 $14,170,000 2019 Bond

$310,000 $310,000 2018
$15,596,540 $15,380,743

CONSTRUCTION

Bids were opened on 9/17/2019 and are currently being evaluated. The City is currently 
in the process of acquiring the 0.5 acre property adjacent to the existing property.

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

DESIGN

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Type:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Facilities

OTHER

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

Fire/EMS Station 

PROJECT COST

Once the construction of the facility is complete, there will be utility operational and 
maintenance costs associated with the new facility.

50+ Years

Planning for the replacement of aged facilities.

General Projects Fund and Certificates of Obligations.

Rex W. Klesel 

20

This project is to design and construct a new Fire and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
Station on the 4.36 acre property at the corner of Bellaire Boulevard and South Street 
that was purchased in December 2017.

City owned 4.38 Acres at the corner of Bellaire Boulevard and South Street. Identified as 
project number 20 on the CIP project location map.

Compelling reasons to construct a new station include, but are not limited to expanding 
service coverage to the south and east quarters of the Fire Department response 
territory. Also, the two existing stations lack sufficient windstorm ratings and have 
inadequate sleeping quarters for staff.



Revised 10/8/2019

$120,000 2019
$3,200 2019 Survey

$123,200
OTHER

Adams Surveying is currently researching the ownership of the alley that runs behind the City and 
Chamber properties.

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

Public Parking

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

Willis Street Downtown Parking Lot

PROJECT COST

No

30-40 years

Maintain Infrastructure

General Projects Fund

City Engineer

21

This project includes the installation of a concrete public parking lot on the City owned 
property at the southeast corner of the Willis and Hardie intersection.

Project location identified as number 21 on the CIP project location map.

To create additional public parking in the downtown area.



Revised 4/1/2019

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED FISCAL YEAR

$150,903 $130,000 2018

$150,903 $130,000

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Museum Expansion

PROJECT COST

Yes

30-40 years

HOT Tax 

Parks Director / CVB Director

22

Interior build-out of the loading dock area of the Alvin Museum to accommodate 
additional exhibit space for a future Nolan Ryan permanent exhibit.

Project location identified as number 22 on the CIP project location map.

Provide additional exhibit space, as requested by the Alvin Museum Society, whom acquired items 
from the recently closed Nolan Ryan Museum located inside the Nolan Ryan Center at Alvin 
Community College. This exhibit will continue to honor Nolan Ryan as a local sports icon and 
continue to provide an oppotunity for tourism to the City of Alvin. 

Project complete.

Facilities



Revised 10/8/2019

$156,408 2018

$156,408

Mustang Bayou Bank Repair

PROJECT COST

No

20 years

Maintain Infrastructure

General Fund

City Engineer / Parks Director

23

This project includes the design and repair of two locations along Mustang Bayou where 
the bayou side slope failed due to flood waters from Hurricane Harvey.

Two areas along the bank of Mustang Bayou that washed out during Hurricane Harvey. 
Project location identified as number 23 on the CIP project location map.

This project is needed to restore the portion of the Hike and Bike Trail that was 
destroyed due to the side slope failure and to restore the bayou.

CONSTRUCTION

Park / Drainage

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

OTHER

GC Engineering submitted 90% design plans on 5/10/2019 for Staff review. In June 2019 FEMA informed the 
City that mitigation funds would not be available for the recommended repair option to the Hike and Bike Trail 
area of erosion near House Street. On 8/23/2019 GC Engineering submitted a phased option to repair the 
erosion near House Street. FEMA is currently evaluating for funding.

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN



Revised 4/1/2019

$150,000 $150,000 2019

$150,000 $150,000

Pearson Park Sidewalk Replacement Project

PROJECT COST

No

20+ years

Provide ADA compliant pedestrian access within Pearson Park

General Fund

Parks and Recreation Director

24

Remove, redesign and replace approximately 6,300 linear feet of sidewalk within 
Pearson Park.

Pearson Park 2200 Westpark Dr. within the Corporate City Limits. Identified as number 
24 on the CIP project location map.

Current condition of sidewalk is poor with many areas non-conforming to ADA 
specifications.  Also the configuration does not allow ease of access to many park 
amenities. 

Project complete.

Sidewalk replacement 

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN 



Revised 10/8/2019

$100,000 $100,000 2019

$100,000 $100,000

Hike and Bike Trail Phase III Design

PROJECT COST

Yes

20+ years

Extending the existing hike and bike trail as a key addition to the Alvin trail system for 
non-motorized transportation 

General Fund

Parks and Recreation Director

25

Design third phase of the existing Hike and Bike Trail adding approximately 1.6 miles of 
trail to the existing 1.7 miles.

Identified on the CIP project location map as project number 25. South Street to 
Mustang Road within the Corporate City Limits.

Provide non-motorized transportation from downtown Alvin to Alvin Community 
College.

Postponed portion of trail crossing at Bypass until later date. Awaiting proposal for phase III trail 
design from Kimley-Horn.

Parks

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN 



Revised 10/8/2019

$30,600 2018
$275,000 $787,531 $300,000 2019

$275,000 $818,131 $300,000

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN 
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Disc Golf Course

PROJECT COST

Yes

20+ years

Promote Alvin's future Disc Golf Course as a regional amenity. (Parks Master Plan 4.2.2)

Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund

Parks and Recreation Director

26

Develop a lighted eighteen hole disc golf course with pedestrian walking path.

Approximately 38.45 acres south of Briscoe Park within the Corporate City Limits. 
Identified as number 26 on the CIP project location map.

Activate undeveloped city owned property and integrate into parks system to provide a 
regional attraction which promotes recreational tourism.

Lucas Construction formed and poured approximately 4,000 of the nearly 5,280 linear feet of 
concrete pathway along with 13 of the 18 tee boxes. All light poles have been installed along with 
underground electrical wiring. Scheduled completion November 2019.

Disc Golf



Revised 7/8/2019

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED FISCAL YEAR

$100,000 $100,000 2019

City Hall Security Renovations

PROJECT COST

No

30-40 years

General Fund

Parks Director 

27

Provide secondary exit for both Utility Billing and Court office suites. Control access into 
City Hall by establishing two employee only entrances and one general public entrance. 
Consolidate and re-locate four existing handicapped parking spaces closer to the public 
entrance.

Project location identified as number 27 on the CIP project location map.

Currently the office suites of Court and Utility Billing have only one ingress/egress which is located 
in the main foyer of City Hall. Providing a secondary means of access will provide employees a 
safer and more discrete option. Controlled access into City Hall will provide improved direction for 
citizens and employees.

Project complete.

Facilities

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:



FY19 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PROJECT WORKSHEET OVERVIEW 

October 2019 
    

PARKS ANNUAL OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 

Project Scope  Develop an annual operation and maintenance plan for Alvin’s parks system, including 

provisions for regular physical condition assessments of grounds and facilities, 

equipment safety inspections, maintenance scheduling and personal tracking and 

funding and resource assessment.  

 

Background/Community 

Value  

Items 9 and 14 from the 2035 Comp Plan help create standardized criteria of 

maintenance and improvements of parks to enhance neighborhood viability. To 

illustrate, “item 9” encourages staff to focus on park and recreation improvements as a 

means for elevating neighborhood viability.  Also, “item 14” directs staff to develop a 

park standards manual that outlines equipment standards (types and finishes), 

branding guidelines, and design requirements so that the Alvin park system maintains a 

consistent level of quality, maintenance and aesthetic appeal. By developing a park 

standards manual that outlines equipment standards (types and finishes), branding 

guidelines, and design requirements, the Alvin park system will maintain a consistent 

level of quality, maintenance, and desirable aesthetic appeal. This will help sustain and 

improve the quality, condition and attractive appearance of public areas and facilities 

within our community. 

 

 

 

Team Leader and 

Members  

Dan Kelinske, Parks & Rec. Dir., Team Leader; Carlos Tavira, Park Operations Manager; 

Michelle Nesrsta, Recreation Manager; Dwight Rhodes, Chairperson Parks and 

Recreation board.  

Quarterly 

 Updates  

Due by 9/29/2016 Due by 12/29/2016 Due by 03/30/2017 Due by 06/29/2017 

Host team meeting 

in December, once 

Park Standards 

Manual is 

completed to 

begin information 

gathering, establish 

processes and 

overall plan outline. 

Awaiting initial draft 

of standards 

manual. Will host 

initial meeting by 

January 25th utilizing 

draft Park 

Standards Manual 

as a guide. 

Now that final draft 

of Parks Standard 

Manual is 

complete, will now 

host initial meeting 

June 2017 

Parks Standard 

Manual adopted 

by Council on 6-

15-17. Host initial 

meeting utilizing 

Park Standards 

Manual as a guide 

by August 2017 

Quarterly 

Updates 

Due by 09/28/2017 Due by 12/28/2017 Due by 03/29/2018 Due by 06/28/2018 

Conference call 

scheduled for 11-29 

to explore 

outsourcing draft 

plan. 

Received proposal 

from KKC.  Currently 

identifying funding 

source.  If 

approved, this 

would be a 4-

month process. 

Project on hold, 

pending funding. 

New Operations 

Manager hired on 

6-25-18 to move 

plan forward. Next 

task is to organize 

contents of plan 

Quarterly Updates Due by 09/27/2018 Due by 12/27/2018 Due by 03/27/2019 Due by 06/27/2019 

Parks Director 

moved the team 

meeting to 

organize contents 

of plan to October 

2018 

Due to the 

specificity and 

comprehensive 

nature, staff 

recommends 

outsourcing plan, 

Requesting funding 

in next fiscal year 

budget 

 

Requesting 

funding in next 

fiscal year budget 

 

Quarterly Updates Due by 09/30/2019    

 

 

Not selected for   

FY-20 Budget. Will 
   



2 

 

 

 

consider for next 

budget cycle 

 
  



3 

WALKABILITY 

Project Scope  Improve the walkability of neighborhoods with the installation of sidewalks concurrent 

with all new development and rehabilitation or construction of construction of new 

sidewalks in the older neighborhoods, particularly adjacent to schools and parks.  

Sidewalks at the following locations are currently being designed:  Willis St. (north side 

between Gordon and Hardie), Gordon St. (west side in front of Kibbe Realty), Sealy St. 

(south side between Gordon and Hardie), Hardie St. (east side mid-block to Sealy), 

Willis St. (south side between Second and Hood), Second St. (west side between Sealy 

and the Mustang Bayou Bridge), and E. House St. (south side between Hassen 

Elementary and La Quinta Inn). 

 

Background/Community 

Value  

Provide safe areas to walk in and around the older sections of town where 

pedestrians are frequently observed. 

Team Leader and 

Members  
Michelle Segovia, City Engineer, Team Leader; Brian Smith, Public Services Director 

 

 

 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

Due by 9/29/2016 Due by 12/29/2016 Due by 03/30/2017 Due by 06/29/2017 

Project Areas 

currently being 

surveyed to identify 

right-of-way. 

 

 

Survey work  Survey work to 

continue through 

mid-April and begin 

design. 

4-15-17 Project 

areas have been 

surveyed to identify 

right-of-way. Now 

finishing design and 

preparing bid 

package 

Quarterly  

Updates 

Due by 09/28/2017 Due by 12/28/2017   

Bid package sent 

out and bids were 

opened on 9-12-17. 

Going to Council 

on 10-19-17 for 

approval. On 10-19-

17, Council 

approved the 

project in the 

amount of 

$299,038.59  

This project will 

continue from year 

to year, was moved 

to the CIP, and will 

be tracked there 

  

 
  



4 

MAJOR THOROUGHFARE PLAN PHASE II 

Project Scope  Klotz Associates in conjunction with City Staff is currently working on Phase II of this two 

phase Thoroughfare Plan Update which includes the preparation of an Implementation 

Plan with cost estimates, a Capital Improvements Program (CIP), and the development 

of funding options including Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) submittals to the 

Houston Galveston Area Council (HGAC) and is scheduled to be complete March 15, 

2018. 

 

Background/Community 

Value  

The Thoroughfare Plan Update was identified as a near term (less than two years) 

project in the 2035 Comprehensive Plan. The Thoroughfare Plan benefits the 

community by establishing a plan for future roadway projects that will increase mobility 

and ease traffic congestion as the City continues to grow 

 

Team Leader and 

Members  

Michelle Segovia, City Engineer, Team Leader; David Balmos, Project Manager Klotz 

Associates; Brian Smith, Public Services Director 

Quarterly 

 Updates  

Due by 9/29/2016 Due by 12/29/2016 Due by 03/30/2017 Due by 06/29/2017 

David Balmos to 

submit draft of the 

Implementation 

Plan by 12/31/2016. 

 

 

 

 

Draft 

Implementation 

Plan submitted. 

Now working on 

cost estimates and 

prioritization to be 

submitted as part 

of a manageable 

Capital 

Improvements 

Program (CIP) 

A prioritized list of 

projects is to be 

submitted by the 

end of April 2017. 

6-15-17 Completed 

draft project list 

with preliminary 

project cost 

estimates. 

Quarterly 

Updates 

Due by 09/28/2017 Due by 12/28/2017   

Beth Shelton with 

RPS Klotz presented 

plan to Council on 

8-3-17. Next goal is 

to Submit project 

applications for 

Transportation 

Improvement 

Program (TIP) 

funding through the 

Houston Galveston 

Area Council 

(HGAC) by 3-15-18 

This project was 

moved to the CIP, 

and will be tracked 

there 

  

  
  



5 

DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENTS  

Project Scope  Create a distinct identity of Downtown, including forming an identifiable edge to the 

district with monuments and gateway treatments at the entries from each direction 

(particularly along Business 35 at the northern and southern entries and Sealy street 

from the west and House street for the east), along with unifying design elements, such 

as unique signage and banners, landscaping decorative lighting, street and 

sidewalk/crosswalk patterns and other unique urban design treatments.  

 

Background/Community 

Value  

Through citizen’s input and initial analysis of downtown Alvin, a framework from which 

to envision a revitalization has been established. The analysis provided an objective 

view of the study area from varying scales. Both strength and weaknesses were 

revealed. The Downtown Improvement Task Force’s feedback helped bring us closer to 

discovering Downtown Alvin’s full potential.  

Team Leader and 

Members  

Larry Buehler, Economic Development Dir, Team Leader; Priya Bhakta, Convention 

Visitor Bureau  

 

 

Quarterly 

 Updates  

Due by 9/29/2016 Due by 12/29/2016 Due by 03/30/2017 Due by 06/29/2017 

Vision and Next 

Steps were 

presented to City 

Council. Currently 

reviewing current 

task force and 

seeking potential 

new members and 

identifying projects. 

 

Henry Dillmann, 

Kathy Hermann, 

Paul Stanton on 

board, seeking 

other new 

members. New 

EDC Employee 

started January 3rd, 

brought up to 

speed. Staff 

reviewing the Texas 

Main Street 

Program, the Texas 

Downtown 

Association, and H-

GAC resources to 

discuss with the 

group. 

LED lights on top of 

buildings in design 

and 

implementation. 

Engineering 

designing 5 new 

decorative street 

lights. 

2nd Annual Art Walk 

on May 6th  

2 locations selected 

for temporary 

bump-outs. 

Downtown grant 

program launched. 

1. LED lighting not 

moving forward 

due to owner of 

private buildings 

not participating, 

looking at 

alternative options. 

2. Bump-outs will 

not be done due to 

traffic pattern 

concerns relating 

to TxDOT Business 

35 highway. 

3. Parking solutions 

presentation given 

to Council on 6-15-

17 for FY 18 budget 

consideration. 

4. Engineering hired 

consultant who is 

designing initial 9 

decorative street 

lights and up to 13 

with phasing 

option. 

5. Sidewalk on Willis 

from city hall to 

Stanton’s Center 

under design for 

bidding. 

6. 47 businesses 

mailed grant 

information. Three 

have verbally 

expressed interest 

in applying. 

Quarterly 

Updates 

Due by 09/28/2017 Due by 12/28/2017 Due by 03/29/2018 Due by 06/28/2018 

Dumpsters at the 

library moved to 

New meter and 

LED lights installed 

Repairs completed 

to globe and 

Contract let for 9 

new decorative 



6 

grass between 

parking lot and 

Depot Centre Blvd. 

to open up 3 

parking spaces. 

Public parking signs 

installed at City Hall 

parking lots and in 

parking lot at 

southeast 

intersection of 

Gordon St. and 

Sealy St. 

New concrete pole 

and street light 

installed on Sealy 

St. across from City 

Hall. 

Electrical engineer 

has been hired to 

design all 13 

decorative street 

lights – will go out 

for bid following 

review. 

Sidewalk project to 

begin construction 

in upcoming 

quarter 

Yarn-bombing 

installation 

removed. 

Meeting with the 

Stanton’s to discuss 

building 

improvement and 

marketing 

opportunities. 

to light interior of 

city-owned parking 

lot at the southeast 

corner of the 

Gordon St. and 

Sealy St. 

intersection. 

Downtown Business 

Improvement 

Grant application 

received, 

reviewed, and 

approved for a 

new covered patio 

at the Gordon 

Street Tavern.  

Engineered plans 

received on 

12/04/17. 

Original National 

Oak Park parking 

lot located at E. 

Sidnor St. and 

Depot Centre Blvd. 

intersection re-

paved and re-

striped. 

Decorative street 

lighting meeting 

held between city 

staff, electrical 

engineer, and 

LESCO 

representative to 

determine full 

scope of project.  

Revisions to 

engineered 

drawings are 

ongoing, and will 

be reviewed upon 

completion.  

Bidding for the 

project is expected 

in the next quarter 

with construction 

soon to follow.   

Sidewalk project 

bid awarded to 

McCrory-CTI 

Services.  Contract 

will be initiated on 

01/03/18. 

parking lot lights at 

the Alvin Public 

Library. 

Staff reviewed 

modified 

specifications from 

LESCO on 02-07-18 

and are sending to 

electrical engineer 

for minor 

adjustments.  

Anticipated return 

time from electrical 

engineer is 2-3 

weeks.  Staff will 

review updated 

lighting 

specifications, 

taking 

approximately 2 

more weeks.  Upon 

approval, staff will 

solicit bids for the 

project, which will 

take between 6-8 

weeks.  Once a 

contractor is 

selected, a pre-

construction 

meeting will be held 

to determine 

contractor 

availability and start 

date.  The bid will 

be for 9 new 

decorative street 

lights along Willis 

Street between 

Gordon Street and 

Taylor Street.  An 

alternate bid for 4 
additional street 

lights around city 

hall along Hood 

Street (2 lights) and 

Hardie Street (2 

lights) will also be 

solicited. 

Renovations 

completed and 

certificate of 

occupancy issued 

to Gordon Street 

Tavern on 03-14-18.  

All necessary 

paperwork 
submitted, 

reviewed, and 

approved.  

Reimbursement 

payment was issued 

to H&S Dillmann, 

street lights along 

Willis Street 

between Gordon 

Street and Taylor 

Street, early 

October 

completion date. 

 

FY18 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Corey’s Kitchen 
(new food 

establishment) at 

319 West Willis 

Street for projects 

totaling $36,000 

($18,000 match). 

Project complete. 

 

New sidewalks 

continue down 

Willis Street to 

Second Street. 

 

Stanton’s Retail 

Center painted the 
front of their center 

to help in 

downtown 

renovations. 

 



7 

Inc. on 03-28-18.  

Local businesses 

used for the project 

include:  McCoy’s 

Building Supply, 

Helpenstihl 

Construction, TDEC, 

Inc., Home Depot, 

Wendel’s Tool 

Repair, and Patco 

Hardware and 

Lumber. 

Downtown 

Incentive Grant 

review committee 

met on 03-05-18 to 

review an 

application 

received by Corey’s 

Kitchen to 319 West 

Willis Street.  

Application was 

approved for 

projects totaling 

$36,000 ($18,000 

match from the City 

of Alvin) and 

acceptance letter 

issued to Corey 

Scopel for 

improvements to 

include new 

plumbing for water 

and wastewater, 

new electrical for 

property lighting, 

construction and 

installation of 

restrooms, new 

perimeter fencing, 

new business 
signage, 

landscaping, and a 

new driveway. 

New sidewalk being 

installed on Depot 

Centre Boulevard 

on 03-08-18.  

Contractors are 

expected to begin 

the remaining 

downtown sidewalk 

portions following 

the completion of 

the sidewalk on 

Depot Centre 

Boulevard. 

Quarterly Updates Due by 09/27/2018 Due by 12/27/2018 Due by 03/27/2019 Due by 06/27/2019 

Brick paver 

sidewalks 

completed along 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant to Fade Stop 

Barber Shop for 

Total Chem opened 

at 118 West Sealy 

Street. 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant review 

committee 



8 

Willis Street, Hardie 

Street, Sealy Street 

and Gordon Street. 

 

Nine (9) new 

decorative street 

lights installed 

along Willis Street 

between Gordon 

Street and Taylor 

Street.  TNMP 
contacted to 

activate lights. 

 

FY18 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Stanton’s Shopping 

Center at 219 North 

Taylor Street for 

projects totaling 

$3,775.93 ($1,887.97 

match). The grant 

approved the 

installation of nine 

(9) new LED lights 

atop Stanton’s 

Shopping Center to 

illuminate the 

parking lot.  Project 

complete. 

 

FY18 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Fade Stop Barber 

Shop at 221 West 

Sealy Street for 

projects totaling 

$4,200 ($2,100 

match). The grant 

approved the 

installation of a 

new LED lit wall sign 

on the front of 

Fade Stop Barber 

Shop.  Project 

complete. 

 

FY18 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Tommaso’s Italian 

Restaurant at 507 

North Gordon 

Street for projects 

totaling $2,679.18 

($1,339.59 match). 

The grant 
approved the 

installation of five 

(5) new LED lights 

mounted atop 

Tommaso’s Italian 

expansion of store-

front window 

completed on 11-

06-18 and 

reimbursement 

check issued.  

Project complete. 

 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant to Jodie’s 

Hair Center for 
installation of a 

new front door 

completed on 10-

24-18 and 

reimbursement 

check issued.  

Project complete. 

 

Rocket Boom 

Coffee opened at 

419 West Sealy 

Street. 

 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 
Rocket Boom 

Coffee at 419 West 

Sealy Street for 

projects totaling 

$4,704.98 ($2,352.49 

match).  The grant 

approved painting 

of the exterior of 

the building and 

installation of a 

new wall sign.  

Project complete. 

 

G & G Kustom 

Designing opened 

at 219 West Sealy 

Street. 

 

Direct mail out of 

grant guidelines, 

application, past 

projects and 

boundary map to 

49 downtown 

businesses. 

Ugly corner well 

plugging 

completed and the 

City can now move 

forward to secure 

the Marton 

property. 

 

D.A.R.T. meeting 

held on 02-04-19 to 

provide updates to 
the group and 

discuss potential 

downtown events in 

the Stanton’s 

overflow parking 

lot. 

meeting held on 

07-09-19 for Patco 

Hardware & 

Lumber.  The review 

committee has 

postponed a final 

determination 

pending more 

extensive plans and 

bid information 

from the applicant. 

 

Downtown grant 

information 

provided to two (2) 

interested business 

owners.   

 

Monthly car shows 

being held during 

the summer months 

in Stanton’s 

overflow parking lot 

on Sunday 

mornings, hosted 

by Rocket Boom 

Coffee. 



9 

Restaurant and 

their pole sign to 

illuminate the 

parking lot.  Project 

complete. 

 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Fade Stop Barber 

Shop at 221 West 

Sealy Street for 
projects totaling 

$6,100.00 ($3,050.00 

match).  The grant 

approved the 

expansion of a 

window on the 

front of the building 

to allow for passing 

vehicles and 

pedestrians to see 

inside of the barber 

shop.  Project 

ongoing. 

 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Jodie’s Hair Center 

at 104 South Hood 

Street for projects 

totaling $1,880.00 

($940.00 match.  

The grant 

approved the 

replacement of the 

front door to 

Jodie’s Hair Center, 

and is the first 

phase of 

renovations that 

are to include new 
fencing, a new 

awning, parking lot 

resurfacing and an 

exterior paint job of 

the building. 

Project ongoing. 

 

Quarterly Updates Due by 09/30/2019    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Stanton’s Shopping 

Center to install 

new signage along 

the storefront. 

 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Patco Hardware & 

Lumber to install a 

   



10 

new entrance that 

will align with Hood 

Street and convert 

the existing 

entrance into a 

glass display 

window.  The 

approved 

application also 

includes new 

sidewalks and 

concrete work to 

make the new 

entrance ADA 

compliant. 

 

Downtown Grant 

program 

expanded to now 

include the Gordon 

Street corridor from 

HWY 6 to FM 1462.  

The guidelines and 

application were 

also revised to 

reflect the review 

committee’s desire 

to see more 

extensive façade 

exterior 

renovations, and 

funding for the 

grant program was 

increased from 

$25,000 to $50,000 

for FY20. 

 

Island Driving 

School has opened 

at 219 W. Sealy St. 

 

Lobito’s Tienda 

Salvadorena has 

opened at 317 W. 

Willis St. 

  



11 

 

DEVELOPMENT OF BLUE TRAILS  

Project Scope  Develop a “Blue Trails” concept plan and trail network that establishes the Mustang 

Bayou waterways as a key addition to the larger Alvin Trails Network and capitalizes on 

local resources as a means of tourism, education, research and recreation 

 

Background/Community 

Value  

This goal was adopted into the City’s comprehensive plan.  The City Council 

provided funding in the FY2018 budget to conduct a study. 

Team Leader and 

Members  

Dan Kelinske, Parks and Recreation 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

Due by 12/29/2017 Due by 3/29/2018   

Initial call with 

consultant to 

discuss scope of 

services 11-29-2017. 

 

 

 

This project was 

moved to the CIP, 

and will be tracked 

there 

  

 

 

REVISION TO PARKLAND DEDICATION FEES IN LIEU 

Project Scope  Revise parkland dedication fees in lieu and development ordinance to establish a fund 

to allow for community park dedication and subsequent fund allocation so that the City 

might have more opportunities to acquire larger parcels of land. This will benefit a larger 

service area rather than solely requiring dedication within dedication “zones”.  

Background/Community 

Value  

This goal was adopted into the City’s comprehensive plan.  By completing this 

goal, the current quadrants which were established to limit the area where 

parkland dedication funds could be spent based on area of fee collection 

would be eliminated.  By eliminating the quadrants, future parkland dedication 

funds would be available for use throughout the City.  

Team Leader and 

Members  

Dan Kelinske, Parks and Recreation 

Florence Chappa - Finance 

Diane Harper - Legal 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

Due by 12/29/2017 Due by 3/29/2018   

Hold team meeting 

to review draft of 

changes to Ord. 06-

U and establish 

mechanism to 

“freeze” existing 

funds within 

quadrants 1-4 

 

 

1/3/2018 - Park 

Board discussed 

and recommended 

approval of 

Ordinance 18-C 

revision of parkland 

dedication fees in 

lieu. 2/15 -City 

Council approved 

Ordinance 18-C. 

Project Completed 

 

 

 

 

  



12 

 

REGIONAL DETENTION 

Project Scope  Form a target-area capital investment program focused on infrastructure 

improvements within at-risk neighborhoods.  

Background/Community 

Value  

This goal was adopted into the City’s comprehensive plan.  By completing this 

goal,  

Team Leader and 

Members  

Michelle Segovia – City Engineer 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

Due by 12/29/2017 Due by 3/29/2018   

 

 

This project is 

addressing 

drainage for at risk 

neighborhoods, 

was moved to the 

CIP, and will be 

tracked there 

  

 

TREES WITHIN CITY RIGHT OF WAY 

Project Scope  Address trees in all new residential developments in relationship to street and utility 

placement to avoid problems 

Background/Community 

Value  

This goal was adopted into the City’s comprehensive plan.  By completing this 

goal, it will avoid problems within utility placement as the street trees grow. 

Team Leader and 

Members  

Michelle Segovia – City Engineer 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

Due by 09/29/2016 Due by 12/29/2016   

Team to approve 

final draft of tree 

ordinance. 

Recommend 

removal of 

residential new 

construction from 

ordinance following 

CPC review. 

Team approval of 

final draft of 

ordinance. 

CPC review 

completed and 

City Council 

approval 

completed. 

Project Completed 

  

 

PRO-ACTIVE CODE ENFORCEMENT 

Project Scope  Employ a pro-active code enforcement strategy that first offers helpful assistance to 

property owners in complying with municipal codes rather than a punitive approach, 

so that enforcement resources may be targeted to the worst areas and offenders. 

Background/Community 

Value  

This goal was adopted into the City’s comprehensive plan.  By completing this 

goal, Code Compliance will provide assistances and education before a 

punitive approach.  

Team Leader and 

Members  

Brian Smith – Public Works Director 



13 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

 Due by 3/29/2018 Due by 6/28/2018 Due by 9/27/2018 

 

 

Management 

Assistant (MA) is 

researching the 

process and 

procedures of 

Code Compliance.  

MA spent time 

inside the 

department and 

out in the field, now 

exploring new 

options  

 

Project was 

delayed during this 

quarter while Code 

Compliance was 

down to one staff 

member. Project is 

continuing now 

that staffing level is 

back to normal.  

Code continues to 

approach each 

case in an 

educational way 

before 

enforcement. 

Although Code 

continues to 

approach each 

case in this way it is 

always changing, 

and Code makes 

the necessary 

adjustments. 

Project Completed 

 

 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/17/2019 

Department:  Public Services Contact:  Brandon Moody, Utility Superintendent  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider the Interlocal Agreement IS19-0011 with Brazoria County for an Asphalt 

Improvement Project; and authorize the Mayor to sign upon legal review. 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   The proposed Interlocal Agreement IS19-0011 between the City and the County provides the 

mechanisms for the County to provide the City of Alvin with equipment and personnel to assist in the 

construction, improvement, maintenance and/or repair of 1.81 miles of asphalt streets in various locations 

within the city limits of Alvin. The streets identified to be overlaid in this agreement are Windsor Square, 

Coventry Lane, Hurstgreen Lane, Oxford Lane, Dyche Lane, and Sky Ranch Road.  

 

The City of Alvin entered into this partnership with Brazoria County in 1991 and has continued to use the 

program since that time. This program provides for low cost paving and rehabilitation of asphalt streets and has 

improved over 34 miles of asphalt streets since the start in 1991. In the last four years, the program has 

achieved the rehabilitation and paving of 74,000 linear feet of asphalt or 13 miles, averaging 2.3325 miles per 

year. 
 

This agreement has already been approved and signed by the Brazoria County Judge, L.M. “Matt” Sebesta. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:      312-5501-00-9011 Amount:       $250,000 1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed:  

 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Interlocal Agreement IS19-0011 

• Exhibit B 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve the Interlocal Agreement IS19-0011 with Brazoria County for an 

Asphalt Improvement Project; and authorize the Mayor to sign upon legal review. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 







EXHIBIT "B" 

Materials Cost Estimate for Project: windsor square 

Limits Len Pct Ctr Area Priority Type FY 

0.63 3 Afv Nor 3 IS 2019 

jltem Description I Len_Mij Wid_Ftl Thk_lnl Ratel Rate Unitl Qty lUnit Price ltemCost 

;c~-~ ~ -for prime _ _ ____ --~~~~---·'2:.~ : _ 2 . -S~-- 0 .~ ,9a11~9!41 .. ~~~ !~:~ ... -5;:~~ 6;:~¥s-1A~p~_a! t - H~A~-~J_l?e D __ _ I ~63i _ __ - ·- __ --·· --·---··--···-----··-----·· --·--·----- __ ]._ ______ _ 

I Project Cost: I 70,969 I 

Printed 30-0ct-18 Page 1 



EXHIBIT "B" 

Materials Cost Estimate for Project: coventry In 

Limits Ctr Area Priority Type FY 

Alv IS 2019 

Item Description Len_Mi Wid_Ft Thk_ln Rate Rate Unit Qty Unit Price 

~~s_s_1 __ '.or prir::i_e _ __'.__ ~~'----· -- 22J __ _ * __ __ -~---1 Gal/S9Yd .--~~-' _ _2:_50 
i~~P.~!:~~ -~ HM_AC T1'.~~ D__ _i - -~:~41 _______ 231_ ' ··-·· 2:5_. -· _ _L _____ i ____ 2~~o_n _:_~o 

J Project Cost: / 

Item Cost 

279 

15,726 

Printed 30-0ct-18 Page 1 



-------------------·-----------------

EXHIBIT "B" 

Materials Cost Estimate for Project: hurst green In 

Limits Ctr Area Priority Type FY 

Alv Nor 3 IS 2019 

Item Description Len Mi Wid_Ft Thk_ln Rate Rate Unit Qty Unit Price ltemCost 

1~:~11f~~ ~~~~ ~~e~ ~ -~- , . ~ : ;_1 _~~ ~~ 1 -=-~±=· 1 ::l/S~'C~-~ _ ;:~. ;~-__L-t1-_5-;-:~--~+--_-_ -1 -5.-~!-~ J 

· j Project Cost: ! 16,026 j 

Printed 30-0ct-18 Page 1 



............... ·-··-··----------· 

EXHIBIT "B" 

Materials Cost Estimate for Project: oxford In 

Limits Len Pct Ctr Area Priority Type FY 

0.17 3 Alv Nor 3 IS 2019 

Item Description Len_Mi Wid Ft Thk_ln Rate Rate Unit Qty Unit Price ltemCost 

~:P_~h-~~;:~~:~-Ty~e"~ - · ~ j __ , .~ __ ;_;1==--: ~~t··- - 2·~1 -~~~l/S~~s·=-~~~~,~~L·~~ 
j Project Cost: 18, 772 I 

Printed 30-0ct-18 Page 1 



EXHIBIT "W' 

Materials Cost Estimate for Project: sky ranch road 

Limits Len Pct Ctr Area Priority Type FY 

Alv Nor 3 IS 2019 

Item Description Len_Mi Wid_Ft Thk_ln Rate Rate Unit Qty Unit Price ltemCost 

---i- -~-:~:t----- 1/~i-- ·25/ --0~-1 fGair~q_Y_d __ i ---:~~ -~~=~-f-s~:~~j - - 4o,~!: i 
- --- ----- I -- ---- - ----------• ----- j _____ - --- .. ________ __! __ _ ______ - ______ __J_ _ _. _ _ __ __ _ _, 

1Css1 for prime 
I·- · --· -· · ··-- - ~ ··----

:~~p-~~'!..=_~_MAC Type D 

I Project Cost: I 41, 1371 

Printed 30-0ct-18 Page 1 



················-·····--·-- ·- -----

EXHIBIT "B" 

Materials Cost Estimate for Project: dyche In 

Limits Len Pct Ctr Area Priority Type FY 

0.25 3 Alv Nor 3 IS 2019 

jltem Description I Len_Mil Wid_Ftl Thk_lnl Rate/ Rate Unit/ Qty /Unit Price! ltemCost 

IABS-65 ! 0.251 221 ; 1.4!Gal/SqYd ! 4,439 !Gal 2.19! 9,721 
I -·-·- ·····-- - --·--- - . ··----r-····- - · · -- --------L·------·· ·~ ·-, ... .. - -·· -~· --···--· ·-- ···-·· ·---

i~~wf~~~: can:c_ - --1- -~'~~- ~~1 _J~--o 1 ~(IYd_ l=~'·~~ ~J;~; ,_' t:~1 19,!~~:i 
~~halt_ .::_ ~~_'.'\C Typ:_9_ __J _ __ 0.2~L_2~ . -·~·-·_J_ ___ ____ L__~~- rr.~~- oo : 23,~!~.: 

I Project Cost: J 52, 865 J 

Printed 30-0ct-1 8 Page 1 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/17/2019 

Department:  City Manager Contact:  Junru Roland, City Manager  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider two (2) Amendments to the Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center Lease 

which will allow for renovations to be made to Suites 100 and 200 for the Class A & 

Class D Pharmacy Services at the 1111 West Adoue Street facility, and authorize the 

Mayor to sign, subject to legal review. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   In 2009, the City entered into the first Lease Agreement with Stephen F. Austin, for the Stephen 

F. Austin Community Health Center, located at 1111 W. Adoue Street. The Stephen F. Austin Community 

health Center provides free or reduced priced medical and social services to the residents of Brazoria County, 

and has been fully operational at this location since the 2009 lease agreement.  

 

In July 2019, the lease agreement was extended and contains the same terms and conditions, and will run for 

five (5) years, with an additional five (5) year renewal. 

 

After the lease was extended in July, the City was contacted by Ezreal Garcia of Stephen F. Austin Community 

Health Center informing the City that they are expanding their services to provide pharmacy services. In order 

to provide these pharmacy services of the Class A and Class D Licenses, they will need to make renovations to 

Suites 100 and 200.  This expansion of services and renovations change the original terms of the lease.  

Therefore, the amendments need to be entered into. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed:  

 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Lease Agreement 

• Amendment Lease for Pharmacy Services – Class A. 

• Amendment Lease for Pharmacy Services – Class D. 

 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the Amendment Leases for Stephen F. Austin Community Health 

Center to provide Pharmacy Services at the 1111 West Adoue Street facility. 

 
 



 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 

 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § 

 

 

This Lease Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Alvin, Texas, a home 

rule municipality (the “City”), and the Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center (“Stephen 

F. Austin”), and in consideration thereof, do hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

 

1. The City hereby leases to Stephen F. Austin all that certain tract or parcel of 

land including the improvements situated at 1111 West Adoue Street, Alvin, Brazoria County, 

Texas (“the Facility”), and being more particularly described as follows, to-wit: 

 

Lots number 2 and 3 and 6 and 7 of Block 2 in the 

Jamison Addition to the City of Alvin, Brazoria 

County, Texas, as recorded in the plat of the said 

Jamison Addition at Volume 23, Page 556 of the 

Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

2. Stephen F. Austin shall use the leased facility only for the purpose of reduced cost 

health and social services to residents of Brazoria County, Texas.  Such services may be 

provided directly by Stephen F. Austin or by other persons or agencies with whom Stephen F. 

Austin may contract. The City is leasing the facility to Stephen F. Austin subject to the City’s 

lease with Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

3. Stephen F. Austin agrees not to sublease, assign, or otherwise transfer the property, 

or use the property for a non-grant-related purpose(s) at any time during the term of the Lease 

Agreement, whether or not grant support has ended without the prior written approval from Health 

Resources and Services Administration (“HRSA”) and the City of Alvin. 

 

4. The property owner (City of Alvin and/or Brazoria County) will inform HRSA of 

any default by Stephen F. Austin under the Lease Agreement. 

 

5. HRSA shall have sixty (60) days from the date of receipt of the property owner’s 

notice of default in which to attempt to cure the default, and that the property owner will delay 

exercising remedies until the end of the sixty (60) day period. 

 

6. HRSA may intervene to ensure that the default is eliminated by Stephen F. Austin 

or another recipient named by HRSA. 

 

7. The City of Alvin shall accept payment of money or performance of any other 

obligation by the HRSA’s designee, for Stephen F. Austin, as if such payment of money or 

performance had been made by Stephen F. Austin. 

 



Stephen F. Austin Lease Agreement – 2019  Page 2 of 5 

 

8. In the event that Stephen F. Austin defaults, the grant is terminated, or Stephen F. 

Austin vacates the property before the end of the lease term, HRSA shall have the right to 

designate a replacement for Stephen F. Austin for the balance of the lease term, subject to 

approval by the property owner, which will not be withheld except for good reason. 

 

9. The initial term of the lease shall be for five (5) years, commencing on the 18th 

day of June 2019, and ending on the 30th day of June 2024.  The lease may be renewed for an 

additional five (5) year term unless one of the parties gives notice of its intention not to renew 

the lease at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the current five (5) year term.  With one (1) 

year remaining on the lease, both parties shall meet to consider renewal of the lease. 

 

10. The City shall have the right to terminate the lease at any time if any of the 

following events occur: 

 

a) Stephen F. Austin fails to use the leased facility for its intended purpose for 

thirty (30) or more consecutive calendar days, and such failure is not caused 

by a force majeure; or 

 

b) Stephen F. Austin’s federal funding under Section 330 of the Public Health 

Service Act or its equivalent is not renewed; or 

 

c) Stephen F. Austin fails to maintain the required insurance pursuant to 

provisions16 and 17. 

 

11. Stephen F. Austin shall have the right to terminate the lease at any time as long as 

Stephen F. Austin provides the City a ninety (90) day written notice to terminate the lease. 

 

This termination provision is subject to further renegotiation by the City or Brazoria 

County in the event the City or Brazoria County construct additional improvements on the 

premises. 

 

12. In consideration for this lease, Stephen F. Austin agrees to utilize the leased 

facility to provide reduced cost health and social services for the residents of Brazoria County, 

Texas, including, but not limited to, primary health care services such as:  immunizations, 

tuberculosis tests, well-baby services, pre-natal care, and family planning services, which 

services are in the interest of the public health and welfare. 

 



Stephen F. Austin Lease Agreement – 2019  Page 3 of 5 

 

13. Stephen F. Austin agrees to provide the City with a copy of the following 

documentation: 

 

a) their annual Notice of Grant Award (“NGA”) and/or letters from Health 

Resources and Services Administration (“HRSA”) regarding their annual 

Section 330 grant renewal, including non-compliance letters or “final 

determination” letters; and 

 

b) any audits prepared on behalf of Stephen F. Austin; and 

 

c) a list of all grants for more than $25,000 received by Stephen F. Austin during 

the preceding year. 

 

The City shall keep all documents and information received from Stephen F. Austin 

proprietary and confidential and will not disseminate such material unless otherwise agreed to in 

writing by Stephen F. Austin. 

 

14. Stephen F. Austin acknowledges there are existing improvements upon the land 

and that they have the use of the existing improvements “as is” and the City has no obligation to 

repair or maintain them.  Stephen F. Austin shall maintain and insure the current improvements. 

Stephen F. Austin shall have the right to make valuable improvements upon the land and 

premises hereby leased at its own expense with prior approval of the City for any significant 

modifications or new construction, and any improvements made upon the land shall go with the 

land and shall remain thereon after the lease is terminated or Stephen F. Austin abandons the 

premises.  

 

15. It is understood and agreed between the parties that Stephen F. Austin shall have 

the sole responsibility for the healthcare and social services it provides directly, or through 

contracts with others, and that the City is a Lessor of leased premises only and has no right, 

duty, or responsibility in performing services to be undertaken by Stephen F. Austin, and that 

the City has no control or authority over the health services and social services to be undertaken 

by Stephen F. Austin, nor in the decision making process. 

 

16. Stephen F. Austin shall indemnify, keep and hold Brazoria County, including its 

officers, agents, servants and employees, and the City of Alvin, Texas, including the City 

Council, Mayor and City officers, agents, servants and employees, harmless from any and all 

costs, liability, damage or expense, including costs of suit and reasonable expenses of legal 

services claimed by anyone by reason of injury or damage to person or property sustained in, on 

or about the leased premises, or arising out of Stephen F. Austin’s construction or operations on 

said premises, as a proximate result of the acts or omissions of Stephen F. Austin, its 

subcontractors, agents, servants, or employees, or arising out of any condition of the leased 

premises.  Stephen F. Austin shall purchase and keep in force during the term of this agreement 

insurance coverage sufficient to meet its obligations under this paragraph. 

 

17. In addition to holding Brazoria County and the City harmless, Stephen F. Austin 

agrees to maintain insurance as required by their primary funding source and/or recommended 



Stephen F. Austin Lease Agreement – 2019  Page 4 of 5 

 

by the Texas Association of Community Health Centers (“TACHC”) and State and Federal law 

and acceptable by the City, including making the City and Brazoria County additional named 

insureds on its property liability and medical malpractice insurances. 

 

18. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties hereto and 

no other prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreement shall be a binding obligation upon 

the parties hereto.  This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, contracts, and 

understandings, whether written or otherwise, between the parties relating to the subject matter 

hereof. 

 

19. This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the 

laws of the State of Texas. Any action at law, suit in equity or other judicial proceeding for the 

enforcement of this Agreement or any provision thereof shall be instituted only in a state or 

local court having jurisdiction over Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

20. No amendments, variations, modifications or alterations of the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by all parties; provided 

however, this Agreement can and will be amended at any time to conform with all federal and 

state laws and regulations. 

 

21. Any provision of this Agreement prohibited by any rule of law or statutory 

provision of the State of Texas or the United States shall be ineffective to the extent of such 

prohibition without invalidating the remaining provisions herein and shall be deemed modified 

to conform to such rule of law or statutory provision. 

 

22. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

to have been given at the time they are mailed in any general or branch United States Post 

Office enclosed in a registered or certified postage-paid envelope addressed to the address of the 

respective parties stated below or to any changed address either party may have fixed by notice: 

 

To City:  Mayor of the City of Alvin 

  216 West Sealy Street 

  Alvin, Texas 77511 

 

To Center: Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center 

  Chief Operating Officer 

1111 West Adoue Street 

Alvin, Texas 77511 

         

Provided, however, that any notice of change of address shall be effective only on 

receipt. 

 

23. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties 

hereto as though they had signed this Agreement originally. 

 

 



Stephen F. Austin Lease Agreement – 2019  Page 5 of 5 

 

EXECUTED on this ______ day of June 2019 by the City of Alvin: 

 

 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: ______________________________  By: _______________________________ 

 Paul A. Horn      Dixie Roberts 

 Mayor       City Secretary 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTED on this ______ day of ______________ 2019 by the Stephen F. Austin 

Community Health Center: 

 

 

 STEPHEN F. AUSTIN COMMUNITY  ATTEST: 

HEALTH CENTER     

 

        

By: ______________________________  By: ________________________________ 

 Mark Young      

 Chief Executive Officer   Name:  _____________________________ 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 

        



Amendment to Leases Office Space Agreement 

 
This lease agreement is hereby made and entered into by and between City of Alvin, Texas 
“Landlord” and Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center “Tenant”, parties to the Office 
Space Rental Agreement made for the premises located at 1111W. Adoue Street, Alvin, TX 
77511 and dated July 18, 2019 agree to modify and amend said Lease agreement in the 
following way(s): 
 

Tenant Name:  

The “Tenant” Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center name is changed to “Tenant” 
Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center, Inc. 

Tenant Address:  

The address is changed to include 1111W. Adoue St. Suite 100, Alvin, TX 77511. 

Description of Space:  

Tenant shall use the premises of 1111W. Adoue St. Suite 100, Alvin, TX 77511 for Pharmacy 
services. 

All other terms and covenants of the original Rental Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 

 

Signed on this   _______________________, 2019 

 

 

_________________________________  _______________________________________ 

Landlord,       Tenant,  

City of Alvin, TX     Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center,Inc 

 

	



Amendment to Leases Office Space Agreement 

 
This lease agreement is hereby made and entered into by and between City of Alvin, Texas 
“Landlord” and Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center “Tenant”, parties to the Office 
Space Rental Agreement made for the premises located at 1111W. Adoue Street, Alvin, TX 
77511 and dated July 18, 2019 agree to modify and amend said Lease agreement in the 
following way(s): 
 

Tenant Name:  

The “Tenant” Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center name is changed to “Tenant” 
Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center, Inc. 

Tenant Address:  

The address is changed to include 1111W. Adoue St. Suite 100, Alvin, TX 77511. 

Description of Space:  

Tenant shall use the premises of 1111W. Adoue St. Suite 200, Alvin, TX 77511 for Pharmacy 
services. 

All other terms and covenants of the original Rental Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 

 

Signed on this   _______________________, 2019 

 

 

_________________________________  _______________________________________ 

Landlord,       Tenant,  

City of Alvin, TX     Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center,Inc 

 

	



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/17/2019 

Department:  City Secretary Contact:  Dixie Roberts, City Secretary  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider an agreement for RFP-19-01 with Dreyfus Printing for various City of Alvin 

publications to include design, printing and distribution services for FY 2019-2020, with 

an option to renew the agreement for two (2) additional two (2) year periods; and authorize 

the City Manager to sign upon legal review.   
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   In an effort to reduce and consolidate design and printing costs, the City solicited Request for 

Proposals (RFP) for these professional services in August.  This RFP included the design, printing, mailing and 

distribution of a new bi-annual Alvin Publication (newsletter), the design, printing and distribution of the Alvin 

Parks and Recreation Adventure Guides (Spring, Summer, and Fall); printing and cover design of the annual 

budget; printing and the cover design of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report; design and printing of the 

CVB Visitor Guides; design and printing of business cards (as needed), and design and printing services for 

special event flyers and advertisements (i.e. Parks and Recreation events / Tour de Braz).   
 

Three (3) area companies submitted proposals:  Battle Cry Revival LLC, Baystar Printing, and Dreyfus Printing. 

The company with pricing most advantageous to the City is Dreyfus Printing.  The cost for these services will 

be over the $50,000 threshold and requires City Council approval.  The exact not-to-exceed amount is not 

included in this agreement, because there are some projects that will be on an as-need basis such as special event 

advertisements and flyers (i.e. Tour de Braz). This agreement sets the pricing for the design, printing and 

distribution of various City publications.  Dreyfus Printing has worked with the City on many publications 

throughout the years. 
 

Staff recommends approval of this agreement.  
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account: 
Individual dept. 

accounts Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed:  

 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• RFP from Dreyfus Printing 

• Tabulations 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve an agreement for RFP-19-01 with Dreyfus Printing for various City 

of Alvin publications to include design, printing and distribution services for FY 

2019-2020, with an option to renew the agreement for two (2) additional two (2) year 

periods; and authorize the City Manager to sign upon legal review. 



 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☒ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 













BayStar Battle Cry Revival Dreyfus

Alvin Newsletter $14,713 $23,490 $9,644.13

per publication - x 2

Adventure Guide - Spring $7,100 $16,090 $9,170

Adventure Guide - Summer $9,900 $23,130 $12,840

Adventure Guide - Fall $6,600 $13,725 $7,853

Parks & Rec Flyers

Price design per flyer $45/hr $270 single/$475 double $45

Price printing single sided $ 63 per 250 $1.25 per 25 $.05/ea

Price printing double sided $ 85 per 250 $1.55 per 25 $.10/ea

Annual Budget

Creation of cover $45/hr

Price Per publication $3,089 printing $3,465 $2,354

CAFR/Tabs

Creation of cover $45/hr

Price for all specs listed $445 printing $2,650 $233

CVB Visitors Guides

Price Per publication $1,708 $1,050 $2,192

Business Cards

Design $0 $90 initial/$40 each after $22

Printing 1 box $80 $50 $25.70

Graphic Design of Ads

Design of Ad $45/hr $270 single/$475 double $45

Design of Flyer $45/hr $1.25 per 25 $60

Printing $63 $1.55 per 25 $240

Total Items designed/printed:

$58,268 $107,090 $53,903.26

8/6/2019

RFP-19-01 Design/Printing Tabulations



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/17/2019 

Department:  City Manager Contact:  Junru Roland, City Manager  

 
Agenda Item:   Discuss Chapter 31, Apartment Developments, of the Alvin Code of Ordinances. 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☒Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   Councilman Adame has requested a discussion regarding Chapter 31-8 of the Apartment 

Development Ordinance.  The current ordinance allows for the following (with no provisions for variance): 

 

1.) Apartment buildings to be built with a minimum of three apartment units per building; 

2.) Each apartment building shall contain a maximum of ten (10) apartment units; and 

3.) Each apartment building shall be separated by a minimum of twelve (12) feet; and 

4.) No apartment project shall exceed a density of more than fifteen (15) apartment units per acre. 

 

A developer is proposing to develop an apartment complex in Cline Crossing that will exceed the City’s current 

maximum of ten (10) apartment units per apartment building.   Council considerations could include: amending 

the ordinance to allow for variances, increasing the maximum number apartment units per apartment building,  

keeping the current ordinance as is, or drafting a development agreement (which would allow the developer to 

exceed the maximum number of apartment units) and include a commercial/retail component.  

 

This item is for discussion purposes and to offer staff direction on how to proceed. Staff is in favor of an 

amendment to the ordinance with regards to the maximum number of apartment units that are currently allowed 

per apartment building. 

 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed:  

 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Chapter 31 

 

Recommendation:   N/A 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 



Chapter 31 - APARTMENT DEVELOPMENTS[1]  

 

Footnotes:  

--- (1) ---  

Cross reference— Buildings, ch. 5; housing, ch. 12½; streets and sidewalks, ch. 20; subdivisions and 
property developments, ch. 21; townhouses, condominiums and patio homes, ch. 23½.  

Sec. 31-1. - Definitions.  

The following definitions shall apply to this chapter:  

Apartment shall mean a structure containing three (3) or more dwelling units with common walls, 
including units that are located one over the other.  

Apartment project shall mean an apartment development or plan which is submitted and approved 
by a single permit and which is layed out on contiguous or adjacent land which is owned in fee by the 
developer.  

Interior street shall apply to public streets dedicated by the developer of an apartment project. Said 
streets shall not exceed six hundred (600) feet in length and shall be designed to serve a limited area 
within such project and not properties outside the apartment project.  

Access street shall apply to a public street either within or bounding an apartment project which 
serves an apartment project and other property outside the project.  

Driveway shall mean a private access to parking spaces within the apartment project or subdivision.  

(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03) 

Sec. 31-2. - Requirement for issuance of building permit.  

Before a building permit is issued for an apartment project, the developer must submit to the city for 
approval a plat or site plan, as applicable, in conformity with all provisions of chapter 21 of the Code of 
Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, which are not in conflict or inconsistent with this chapter.  

(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03) 

Sec. 31-3. - Streets and alleys.  

(a)  Interior streets shall have a minimum right-of-way width of fifty (50) feet and shall be developed with 
a minimum 27-foot paving section with concrete curbs and gutters and sidewalks in accordance with 
standards set forth in chapter 21 of this Code.  

(b)  Access streets shall have a minimum right-of-way width of sixty (60) feet and shall be developed 
with a minimum 44-foot paving section with concrete curbs and gutters in accordance with the 
standards set forth in chapter 21 of this Code.  

(c)  All apartment projects shall have direct access from at least one dedicated and accessible public 
street having a right-of-way width of not less than sixty (60) feet.  

(d)  Alleys, where provided, shall have a minimum right-of-way width of twenty (20) feet and shall be 
developed with a concrete pavement in accordance with the standards set forth in chapter 21 of this 
Code.  



(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03) 

Sec. 31-4. - Lots.  

(a)  Each apartment project shall be located on a minimum one acre lot with a maximum acreage of ten 
(10) acres.  

(b)  Minimum set back lines:  

Front and rear: Minimum front and rear apartment setback lines shall be at least twenty-five (25) feet 
from the property line. Each corner lot shall have at least the minimum front residential building 
setback on both streets.  

Side yard: Side yard setback lines shall be at least ten (10) feet from the property line for apartment. 
Exception: Minimum setback lines shall increase ten (10) feet from a 60-foot right-of-way where 
minor or major thoroughfare is planned in the thoroughfare plan of the City of Alvin.  

(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03) 

Sec. 31-5. - Height and coverage.  

No building or accessory structure shall exceed three (3) stories or thirty-five (35) feet in height.  

(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03) 

Sec. 31-6. - Parking spaces.  

(a)  Two off-street parking spaces shall be provided per apartment.  

(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03) 

Sec. 31-7. - Additional regulations.  

(a)  No mining, excavation, or soil removal shall be allowed except in connection with construction 
covered by a building permit.  

(b)  All utilities shall be placed underground.  

(c)  At least eighty (80) percent of the exterior walls of each apartment group shall be constructed of 
brick, stone or masonry.  

(d)  A wooden, brick, or masonry fence at least six (6) feet in height shall be constructed along that 
portion of the perimeter of the property upon which the apartment project is located which does not 
abut a public street.  

(e)  No apartment project shall be located nearer than three hundred (300) feet to a single family 
residential dwelling unless it is, also, located within three hundred (300) feet of another apartment 
project. The measurement of the distance between the apartment project and single family 
residential dwelling or other apartment project shall be in a direct line from the property line of the 
apartment project to the property line of the single family residential dwelling or other apartment 
project.  

(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03) 

Sec. 31-8. - Density.  



An apartment project shall have a minimum area of one acre and the following requirements shall 
apply:  

(1)  Apartment buildings shall be built with a minimum of three (3) apartment units per building; and  

(2)  Each apartment building shall contain a maximum of ten (10) apartment units; and  

(3)  Each apartment building shall be separated by a minimum of twelve (12) feet; and  

(4)  No apartment project shall exceed a density of more than fifteen (15) apartment units per acre.  

(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03; Ord. No. 05-O, § 1, 5-19-05) 

Sec. 31-9. - Landscaped area.  

In addition to paved parking and driving areas, service walks and other service areas, at least ten 
(10) percent of the apartment project site must be maintained in landscaped open area.  

(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03) 

Sec. 31-10. - Compliance with laws.  

The developer of an apartment project must comply with all applicable federal, state and city laws 
and regulations pertaining to the apartment project. However, this chapter shall prevail to the extent of 
any inconsistency or conflict with a city law or regulation.  

(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03) 

Sec. 31-11. - Penalty  

Any person convicted of a violation of any provision, restriction or requirement of this chapter shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be fined as prescribed by section 1-5. A separate offense 
shall be deemed committed on each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues.  

(Ord. No. 03-AAA, § 2, 10-16-03; Ord. No. 07-E, § 25, 8-2-07)  


	City Council Agenda 10/17/19
	PRESENTATIONS
	Economic Development

	PUBLIC HEARING
	Portion of Moore Road

	CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Minutes 10/3/19
	B. CIP/Comp Plan Implementation Reports
	CIP
	Comp Plan

	C. Brazoria County Interlocal Agreement - Asphalt Improvement Project
	Interlocal IS19-0011
	Exhibit B


	OTHER BUSINESS
	A. Stephen F. Austin Community Health Center  Lease Agreement Amendments
	Lease Agreement
	Amendment Lease - Class A
	Amendment Lease - Class D

	B. Printing Services
	Dreyfus RFP
	Bid Tabulation

	C. Chapter 31 Discussion
	Chapter 31 - Apartment Developments





